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Scott Scherer, Legislative Advocate, representing Paramount Parks
Alan Glover, Carson City Clerk-Recorder, Carson City, Nevada
Chris Cook, Field Inspector 1l, Nevada State Board of Cosmetology

Chairwoman Buckley:
[Called meeting to order.] We will open the public hearing on A.B. 317,

Assembly Bill 317: Provides for imposition of tax on live entertainment provided
by all houses of prostitution. {BDR 32-926)

Assemblywoman Sheila Leslie, Assembly District No. 27, Washoe County:

I am here today to present A.B. 317. This bill proposes a revision to the live
entertainment tax. Those of you who were here last session remember in our
tax discussions that brothels were included in the omnibus tax bill right up until
the end of the session. A technical problem caused them to be dropped, the
300-seat rule. For those of you who were not here, | will walk you through all
the negotiations and how it happened.

| have always found it refreshing to work with an industry that came forward
and said they want to be part of the tax structure and pay their fair share to
support our state's General Fund. They were so distressed when they were not
able to be part of the tax package that | made a promise to Mr. Flint that |
would reserve a bill draft for his industry.

I am personally not a supporter of the legal brothel industry; Mr. Flint is well
aware of that. The fact remains that we cannot have it both ways in Nevada,
They are either a legal industry or they are not. There is no organized effort to
get rid of brothels in our nen-urban counties; it is a county option right now.
Since they are a legal business, | did agree to bring the bill forward. | do
personally feel that they should be part of the tax structure.

The original language that is in your bill is actually holdover language from last
session, We waere trying to address the issue of strip clubs, out-call massage
operations, and brothels. This was not the language that the brothel industry
wanted., You have been distributed an amendment {Exhibit B} that { have
worked on with Mr. Flint.

George Flint, President, Nevada Brothel Owners Association:

The Las Vegas Sun contacted me in 2002 or 2003 and suggested that maybe
we should be included in the live entertainment tax. | was not sure that was
what we are. | inquired as to who those individuals were who had thought that
we ought to be included. | was told three names; they are all in this room today.
Shelia came to me early on in the 2003 Session and asked me some spegific

RA0003




Assembly Committee on Commerce and Labor
April 13, 2005
Page 4

guestions about how we would feel about this and what the tax might bring in.
We talked about a bill draft request that would be similar to the one that is
before you today. | felt that the Governor's tax package included us because of
its broad definition of live entertainment. It did include us right up to the very
end, when the 300-seat threshold was brought in to the bill at the request of
Senator Neil to protect some of the small arenas in the North Las Vegas area.
He felt they would be impacted by having to charge an admissions fee. That
300-seat threshold not only amended us out of the bill, but it amended out a big
percentage of the other sexually related businesses, particularly in Clark County,
which was not the intention.

[Gearge Flint, continued.} Before you today is an amendment {Exhibit B}, which
is needed by my group. it changes the last two lines of page 1 of the hill and
the first two lines from page 2. The old language had an industry-specific tax on
what could be 30 percent of what the brothel operatars receive, which would
be devastating. This would be similar to raising the gross receipts tax on the
casinos fram 7 percent to almost 30 percent. It was not the language that we
agreed to. It originally appeared in one of the special session bills in an attempt
to bring in the out-call services in Las Vegas. Chairman Parks of Taxation
worked with me to bring this language back in. | don't know how it landed in
this bill. it was too late to changs it before it was presented to you.

Were the bill to pass in its present form, it would be prohibitive, particularly in
fight of the fact that we already pay a tremendous amount of money to the local
government. Brothels in Lyon County pay approximately $95,000 a year in
business license taxes. It is similar in Nye County.

This bill would create around §1.6 million per year, or $3.2 million per biennium.
Only a small portion of that is based on the admissions fee. Once a client
decides to go to that area of the brothel where the live entertainment takes
place, there would be an admissions fee in the $20 range, which would have a
10 percent tax on it. That is only a small part of the tax. A bigger part of the
tax would be a 17 percent tax on alcohol or the bar tax. We have a new
phenomenon in our industry—the sale of food and souvenirs. All food, alcohol,
and souvenirs will be contributing up to 17 percent, as well as the 10 percent
tax on admissions.

| hope that the Committee will give this bill serious consideration, | think that it
is better to tax us and get some benefit from us, than to not. | think this tax will
give us some added acceptability. It will probably become money that the state
will be able to use and appreciate. | was told yesterday that there was
$1.6 million need for a particular area of health care that has been left out of
the Governor’'s budget. [ am sure that you will find a place for this money.
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[George Flint, continued.} | know that there are some of you who have
philosophical problems or moral problems with my industry. | hope that you can
look beyond that and see the overall good that can be accomplished.
Speaker Perkins presented a white paper to the Taxation Committee two years
ago. It was his approach to the tax issue. At that time, he said that we
shouldn't overlook the brothels as a funding source. | went to him and asked if
he was thinking in terms of an industry-specific tax; his response was no. He
was thinking in terms of participation in the overall live entertainment tax.

| think this is a good thing. There is nothing negative about it. | would
respectfully request that you not only give it serious consideration, but also
amend the bill with our proposed amendment, which we drastically need
because we don’t have control over the whole 100 percent. The ladies pay us a
small percentage, anywhere from 30 percent to 50 percent. It would be very
difficult financially to have this as an industry-specific tax.

Assembiyman Seale:
Is there a sales tax on this entertainment?

George Flint:

No. This falis under the same category as all of the services such as barbers and
beauty shops. There has been a consideration in the past to put a tax on
services, but it has never been done, The only tax that is relative in our industry
now [s for the sale of food, beverages, and souvenirs.

Assemblyman Seale:
The other taxes that you are paying, are they local?

George Flint:

Sometimes people are surprised that we pay on our regular employees all the
other taxes that any other business pays, including workers’ comp and
Social Security., We are a well-taxed industry, except that we have never had
the privilege of participating in the state-leve! taxes.

Chairwoman Buckley:
I will close the public hearing on A.B. 317. | will open the hearing on
Assembly Bill 245, Assemblyman Marvel's bill.

Assembly Bili 245: Makes various changes to provisions governing taxes on
transfer of real property. {BDR 32-163)
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Assemblyman John Marvel, Assembly District No. 32, Humboldt (part}, Lander
{part), and Washoe (part):

This bill is the result of one of our higher education subcommittee meetings.

One of the things that came out was the need for more lab space at

universities. Mr. Bacon was in the audience and thought this might be a way to

come up with some funding that we can put into a special account for this.

Ray Bacon, Legislative Advocate, representing Nevada Manufacturers
Association:

[Submitted Exhibit C.] This is one of those tax increase ideas that would impact
my members, some in a negative way and some not., We currently have a
situation which has been brought forth by the recorders on numerous occasions.
Because of the exemption in the Real Property Transfer Tax [RPTTI, we had an
uninformed and unequal tax the way we handle it because it is a function of the
corporate structure. While this bill has some flaws in it, in the way we currently
handle business, it may not be appropriate to continue to process it at this stage
of the game. The problem is still real and will have to be addressed at some
point in time. It has been brought up to this Legislature on many occasions.
Shouid anyone in a different situation wind up paying the tax when someone
else doesn’t pay the tax, | think the State is at severe risk of a lawsuit and
losing. My interest in this is simple, | don't want one of my businesses dragged
into the lawsuit and having to pay excessive legal fees.

it is going to be an irregular flow of income, The logical thing to do is to not
throw that into the General Fund, but to take a look at doing something which
solves a long-term problem. Every government entity in the state of Nevada
does a reasonably poor job of maintaining their structures and buildings. The
logical thing to do would be to move it into an account for maintenance of
buildings, not just state buildings, but the universities or whoever has the
greater need. Over time, that would build up to a sizeable chunk of money.
From a short-term standpoint, it won’t affect anyone that is in office at this
stage of the game. In 15 or 20 years, if you continue to draw out 10 percent of
principal plus the interest on the thing, you would have a sizeable chunk of
change and be able to maintain buildings adequately. This protects the
taxpayers’ investment in new buildings. That is the concept of this bill.

The companies that | list on page one of the handout (Exhibit C) are some
interesting examples. The Cingular-ATT merger was very interesting because
some of the cell sites are owned by one company or the other and some of
them are not. Some of them are on lease properties. Take a look at the
GE-Bently operation. GE bought the company but didn’t buy the real estate.
They are leasing back the facilities. That happens in various other cases. The
real issue to make this fair is that you have to get it down to the point where
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you cannot just take the assessed value of the business. To make it equitable
and fair, we need an appraisal to take a look at the real estate value of the
transfer. This gets away from the stock transfer issues. [t is a muddy problem
and | think the State is at risk until we identify this thing. | suspect we will wind
up with some sort of ongoing look at property taxes as part of the interim. This
should probably be folded into that issue. It really is a long-term risk for the
State. We are not going to have many Mandalay or MGM mergers. At some
point in time, there will be more of those mergers that come along, and this is
good long-term policy,

Chairwoman Buckley;
Mr, Marvel, do you agree that this is something we should continue to look at
and study as opposed to processing this bili?

Assemblyman Marvel:

I think this Is something that should be analyzed to see what the prospective
benefits to the State might be. There has been quite a bit of oppeosition to it in
its present form. | think it is an area we should really take a hard ook at,
because potentially there could be some rather significant revenues for the
maintenance of our schools. By huilding up these sorts of capital funds, this
might be one way to solve the problem of too little lab space.

Chairworan Buckley:
With your permission, | suggest we have Russ Guindon frem Fiscal, who is our

gury on taxes, do an analysis.

Assemblyman Marvel;
| think that is an excellent idea.

Chairwoman Buckley:
Do we have anyone in the audience who could talk about how tax actually
works and is collected?

Patrick Mclnnis, Engineer, Buildings and Grounds Division, Nevada Department
of Administration:
We are the recipients of the money in the existing bill.

Chairwoman Buckley:
He had a question about someone at the county level who collects real estate

transfer tax,
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Assemblyman Arberry;

On this transfer tax, when you have a homeownar who is husband and wife,
and one of them is quit-claimed off so they can refinance the house, then when
they refinance and want to put the other back on, the transfer tax comes into
play. Why? They were already on it.

Dennis Friemann, Auditor, Clark County Recorder’s Office:

If a husband and wife want to refinance a house and the wife deeds off and the
husband gets the loan, there is Exemption b that the wife can deed back on.
There is no transfer tax on that. Spouse-to-spouse is Exemption No. 5, which
allows the transfer without any transfer tax assessed.

Assemblyman Arberry:
What if it is not spouse to spouse?

Dennis Friemann: _

if it is not spouse to spouse, if they deed off, there will be transfer tax because
transfer tax is triggered whan title transfers. It does not matter to whom or
from; transfer tax is assessed every time real property title is transferred. There
are 13 exemptions that allow for the exclusion of transfer tax.

Chairwoman Buckley:

A.B. 554, which | submitted on behalf of the Committee, in Section 8, deals
with this very topic and would be an excellent place if you have any
suggestions on exemptions to include, This section of the bill expands the
exemption to include spouses and relatives., If you are looking at further
expansions in that area, that would be the place for you to amend it if you are
interested.

Assemblyman Arberry:

The reaszon | ask is that we have clients who come in that might not be married
but they own the property together and they want to pull cash out. The other
individual’s FICA [Federal Insurance Contributions Act, 26 USC 3101 et seq.]
scores are not perfect, so the other person gets the loan. Now, they have to
take almost half of the money that they got to pay for the transfar tax.

Chairwoman Buckley:
This would be the perfect area to bring that up. We could lock at that.

With Assemblyman Marvel believing that the issue needs further examination, |
would be inclined to ask our staff 1o prepare information for us, perhaps how
other states view evaluation issues, to allow us to study this further, and to not
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process the bill. We are going to withdraw the bill. We will close the public
hearing on A.B. 245. Let’s turn to our Work Session Document (Exhibit D).

Let’'s do A,B, 338,

Assembly Bill 338: Makes various changes relating to insurance. (BDR 57-232)

Diane Thornton, Committee Policy Analyst:
A.B, 338 is the omnibus bill from the Commissioner of Insurance that amends
various provisions governing insurance, It addresses the following topics:

Establishes oversight of discount health plans.

* Amends provisions regarding risk retention groups, including removing
barriers for captive insurers and complying with the Federa! Risk
Retention Act of 19886,

Amends provisions governing insurance producers,

* Clarifies the Nevada Insurance Guaranty Association’s role in industrial

insurance claims against insolvent insurers.

There are actually four amendments; we received one late amendment. Those
amendments are behind Tabs B {Exhibit E), C (Exhibit F}, D (Exhibit @), and N
{(Exhibit H}. Behind Tab B is the amendment proposed by Ms. Molasky-Arman,
Commissioner of Insurance, during the hearing on the bill. This amendment
proposes separate administrative remedies and criminal penalties regarding
criminal acts of fraudulent insurance,

Behind Tab C in your Work Session Document is an amendment {Exhibit F)
proposed by Ms., Molasky-Arman, which addresses credit insurance. This
amendment provides regulation for all consumer credit insurance sold in
connection with loans or other credit transactions for personal, family, or
household purposes.

Behind Tab D {(Exhibit G} is an amendment proposed by Ms. Molasky-Arman.
This amendment concerns credit property insurance.

Behind Tab N is a proposed amendment (Exhibit H) from Jim Wadhams that he
brought up during the hearing on the bill.

Chairwoman Buckley:
We have the Commissioner here. For the sections having to do with credit
insurance, we requested that the Commissioner present an option since our
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jaws were ranked quite poorly by a national survey., They looked at it carefully
and are presenting the National Association of Insurance Commissioner’s model
act, which would update our statutes to provide the basic protections in this
area. | believe the Commissionar had the opportunity to share them a bit with
her staff. We also gave a copy to Mr. Wadhams, who had requested it.

[Chairwoman Buckley, continued.] Are there any questions on any of the
amendments while we have the Insurance Commissioner with us? The only one
that 1 noticed that was missing from the MNAIC [National Association of
Insurance Commissioners] was the issue about whether a consumer has a
private right-of-action. That is one that | would like to add to it if we could.
There have been some suggestions that we look at an insurance interim study
to examine our rates, regulatory reform, zip-zap, and the recent report on credit
scoring. This would give us a [onger opportunity to look at different insurance
issues in the State. We will see what other interim study ideas we have, but |
thought it was a good idea for us to consider.

Assemblywoman Giunchigliani:

"Zip-zapped” is the process whereby the insurance industry improperly rates
you based on your ZIP code, such as when areas of certain communities that
may be more underprivileged get a higher rate just because of where they are
able to afford to live.

Assemblywoman McClain:
Are we including this last amendment, too?

Chairwoman Buckley:

Assemblywoman McClain is referring to the amendment offered by
Jim Wadhams. That amendment changes the percentages with regard to
75 percent going to the General Fund, instead of 90 percent. | assume the
Division of Insurance supports this, because it would go to that office. It would
also make the bill go 10 Ways and Means, | would think, which isn't a pleasant
experience for anyone. Could you please give the Committee your position with
regard to this amendment?

Alice Molasky-Arman, Commissioner of Insurance, Insurance Division, Nevada
Department of Business and Industry:

| believe that our bill must go to Ways and Means at any rate. | would really

appreciate support of this amendment, which is actually proposed by the

Nevada Captive Insurance Association. This would enable us to retain the kind

of staff we need to service a growing industry—to review their applications, to

get those applications out in a positive and timely manner, and then to conduct
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the appropriate examinations thereafter to ensure that they maintain the same
integrity.

[Alice Molasky-Arman, continued.] When we began our captive laws, we did it
with no request for General Fund money. We mimicked the statutes of other
states that had this 10 percent dedicated to support the services of the
Insurance Commissioner’s Office. However, in those states that have that
10 percent, we did not realize at that time that they were also supported by
their General Fund money. That 10 percent was used primarily in marketing
activities by the Commissioner and then by the Economic Development
Commission.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCLAIN MOVED TO AMEND AND DO PASS
ASSEMBLY BILL 338 WITH ALL OF THE AMENDMENTS,

ASSEMBLYMAN CONKLIN SECONDED THE MOTION.

Assemblywoman Gansert:
This requires a two-thirds majority. Is that because of the increase in some
fees?

Alice Molasky-Arman;
| believs that is the case.

Assemblywoman Gansert!
Are there any new fees, or are they just changing fees?

Alice Molasky-Arman:

The fees are changing; they are actually decreasing, but that still has a fiscal
impact on the State. | believe that is the reason for the two-thirds vote
regquirement,

Chairwoman Buckley:
| don’t think we need two-thirds for decreasing revenue. Was one going up and
cone another down?

Brenda Erdoes, Legislative Counsel:

Yes, that is the case because the Constitution is worded so broadly. It says in
the case of any increase, even if it is offset, you still have to do the two-thirds
or you risk having the bill be held void.
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Chairwoman Buckley:
So, overall net decrease, but because one is going up there is the two-thirds

requirement,

Assemblywoman Giunchigliani:
Is the term “captive” the common term throughout the industry?

Alice Molasky-Arman:

The “captives” are a completsly different breed of insurance company. They are
self-owned and self-managed, principally by major corporations and a number by
risk-retention groups that are formed to provide liability insurance for their
members, such as medical malpractice.

Assemblywoman Giunchigliani:
So it is common. It is just a weird term.

Alice Molasky-Arman:

It is relatively new in Nevada since we have only had the law since 1999. We
are attempting to become the Vermont of the West. Vermont is supported
primarily by their money from captive business,

THE MOTION CARRIED. {Assemblyman Parks was absent for the
vote.)

Chairwoman Buckley:
Next on the agenda is A.B. 360,

Assembly Bill 360: Provides for regulation of persons who practice permanent
cosmetics. (BDR 43-925)

Diane Thornton, Committee Policy Analyst:

[Submitted Exhibit |.] A.B 360 was sponsored by Assemblywoman Weber, and
was heard on April 4, 2005, The original bill requires that the Health Division of
the Department of Human Resources adopt regulations to provide the licensing,
training, and scope of practice for permanent cosmetics technicians, The bill
defines permanent cosmetics and makes it unlawful for a person to engage in
the practice of permanent cosmetics unless he is licensed,
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[Diane Thornton, continued,] The proposed amendment (Exhibit J} under Tab E
is the one that Assemblywoman Weber worked on with Richard Whitley,
Deputy Administrator of the Health Division; Glen Savage of the Clark County
Health District; and Mary Arnold-Ronish, who is a practitioner at Professional
Permanent Cosmetics in Las Vegas,

The proposed amendment {(Exhibit J} under Tab E:

1. Revises the definition of permanent cosmetics.

2. States that no one can practice permanent cosmetology without being
certified by the Socliety of Permanent Cosmetic Professionals, or an
equivalent nationally recognized organization.

3. Suggesis that any person who violates this utility is guilty of a
misdemsanor.

4, It is revised to include local health authorities.

5. Amended to read that cosmsetology does not include the occupation of
permanent cosmetics,

8. A person who performs permanent cosmetics or tattoo application shall
not use infrared technology based equipment or laser technology bhased
equipment unless such eguipment is used under the direction of a
physician. This relates to tattoo removal,

7. A person who performs permanent cosmetic or tattoo related work shall
not remove any permanent cosmetic pigments using any drug, chemical,
or biological agent, unless approved in regulations promulgated by the
Health Authority and the U.S. Food and Drug Administration where
applicable. Any violation of this section is a gross misdemeanor,

Chairwoman Buckiey:

| received a letter from a physiclan with a national board of plastic surgeons, or
some such group, expressing some concern about tha bill. Do you have a copy
of that letter, and was that concern addressed in this amendment?

Diane Thornton, Committee Policy Analyst:
No, | did not receive that letter.

Chairwoman Buckley:

We certainly can check on that issue. | don't know how the Committee feels
about the bill in general, whether there is an appetite to process it or not. | think
the sponsor worked very hard with those who were interested. | think there
might be some lingering questions about tattccing being treated differently.
There is some concern about people in the industry; some are a little
apprehensive about what it might mean, | certainly could not process it or put it
off until Friday, when we could have the sponser come in,
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Assemblywoman Giunchigliani:

| like the idea. It has become the new trend and | think there need to be some
protections out there. | did not get the letter. | wouldn't mind doing an amend
and do pass. If we have to have a subsequent change or correction, at least this
moves it further.

Chairwoman Buckley:
We could get copies of the emails and letters to Assemblywoman Weber now

and copy them for every Committee member, then take it up later, We don’t
have to rush it. We should allow people to look at it ail, and make sure the
sponsor has it as well,

Assemblyman Hettrick:

My wife had the permanent cosmetics done. | think it s a good thing to do
something, because what they made her sign off on was worse than a surgical
procedure, as far as the risk. | think we ought to have people who are gualified
doing it. | think it is reasonable 1o proceed with something here. | would be in
support of that.

Chairwoman Buckley:
Let’s do that, Let's get the copies to everybody and then we will bring it back.

Weo will take A.B. 384 next.

Assembly Bill 384: Makes various changes relating to certain short-term, high-
interest loans. {BDR 52-806)

Diane Thornton, Committee Policy Analyst:

[Submitted Exhibit K.] A.B. 384 was sponsored by Assemblywoman Buckley
and was heard on April 6, 2005. This bill establishes uniform standards and
procedures for the licensing and regulation of check-cashing services, deferred
deposit services, payday loan services, and title loan services. The bill provides
consumer protections including regulating customer repayment and default of
these loans and requiring that the loan establishments comply with the federal
Fair Dsebt Collection Practices Act [15 1).8,C, 1692). The measure also provides
remedies and administrative penalties. Behind Tab F is a mock-up of the
amendment {Exhibit L) proposed by Assemblywoman Buckley.
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Chairwoman Bucldey:

I am continuing to work with consumer advocates and the industry, We are
taking great care. If the Committee is willing to do an amend and do pass, | will
bring the final amendment back to the Committee to allow us to continue to do
some technical tweaking and further tightening of the language.

Assemblyman Anderson:

| see the need for legislation in this area.

ASSEMBLYMAN ANDERSON MOVED TO AMEND AND DO PASS
ASSEMBLY BILL 384,

ASSEMBLYMAN CONKLIN SECONDED THE MOTION.

Assemblyman Seale:
Woeren’t there several bills in this same vein?

Chairwoman Bucldey:

Yes, the other one was A.B. 340, sponsored by Assemblywoman Giunchigliani.
She indicated that she is still amending it and it wasn’t ready for work session
yet. It does not conflict., None of the provisions are in the same statute
numbers, even though it does deal with the same subject.

Assemblyman Hettrick:

I will vote for this on the basis of what we have done. | have to indicate that |
do have a concern. In Section 14, line 11, | know the fees always seem
exorbitant, but 40 percent, calculated on an annual basis, will be so de minimis
as to eliminate the industry entirely. | am concerned that number may ba too
low. | think the general direction of the hill is good.

Chairwoman Buckley:

Section 14 defines short-term foans as being subject to this chapter, Shart-term
lcan is defined as anyone who charges more than a 40 percent APR [annual
percentage rate], The bill still allows them under this chapter to charge a higher
interest rate. That is not the cap section, The way it was structured, sverything
had to be redefined,

Assemblywoman Gansert:
| didn’t see a cap section. [s there 3 cap section?
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Chairwoman Buckley:
Yes, the cap section is on page 15, Section 32.7. it states that a licensee may

collect only the following amounts:

1. The principal amount of the lean.

2. The interest rate as disclosed on the federal truth and lending statement.
3. After the date of default, as defined by the bili, prime plus 10.

4, An insufficient fund fee.

In paragraph 2, it says that you may not charge the customer any other fees or
cost. We are still working on that language because we want to make it crystal
clear since the industry is very clever. The limitation upon default of prime plus
10 is in current law, NRS [Nevada Revised Statutes] 604. What we are really
trying to tighten up here is, you get your contract amount, you get your interest
rate in the contract up to default, upon default you get prime plus 10 for a
period not to exceed 3 months, you get the bad check fee, and that is it.
Collection charges of $2,000 for a $200 loan would be eliminated. That would
be the heart of the bill. We will make that very clear for legislative history in
case this is challenged. That is the intent.

THE MOTION CARRIED, (Assemblyman Arberry and Assemblyman
Parks were not present for the vote.)

Assembly Bill 437. Revises provisions governing manufactured home parks.
(BDR 10-1027)

Diane Thornton, Committee Policy Analyst:

[Submitted Exhibit M.] A.B. 437 was sponsored by the Committee on
Commerce and Labor, and was heard April 1, 2005. This bill revises saveral
provisions regarding manufactured home parks. The landlord of a manufactured
home park is required to post a copy of the utility bill for the park if the utility
bill is for multiple tenants. The bill revises which representative must meet with
the tenants upon receiving a request to hear any complaints or suggestions, The
bill also revises the provisions governing the closure of a manufactured home
park and revises the provisions regarding the limited dealer's license,

Behind Tab G is an amendment {Exhibit N} proposed by Joe Guild from the
Manufactured Home Community Owners. This amendment has four sections to
it, The first two sections deal with who should meet with the tenants. In
Section 3, sub 3, page 3, “managing” is deleted; “with working knowledge of
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the operations of the manufactured home park and with the authority to make
decisions” is added. In Section 3, sub 3, page 3, “an office with working
knowledge of the operations of the manufactured home park designated by the
corporation with the authority to make decisions.” The second amendment is in
Section 8, sub 3: the word “"completed” is added in front of "application.” This
is to inform the prospective buyer and tenant concerning the approval or denial
of a completed application. The third amendment proposed is in Section 7,
sub 4, and deletes the words “potential closure.” That was related to a question
in Committee, if the manufactured park doesn’t actually close. The fourth
amendment is in Section 8, sub 4, and deletes all suggested amendments to
this sectian and puts the language back to the original as it currently reads in
statute,

Chairwoman Buckley:

{ reviewed all of these amendments except for the last one. | thought after my
conversations with Mr. Guild that we were going to leave that language in or
clarify it.

Assemblyman Anderson:

According to my notes, particularly the tanguage in paragraph D, page 9, was to
be retained until a decision was made on the application by the approving local
governing body, or zoning board. That appeared to be needed languags in
Section 8,

Diane Thornton:

1 have that in my notes also. That was supposed 1o be left in,

ASSEMBLYMAN ANDERSON MOVED TO AMEND AND DO PASS
ASSEMEBLY BILL 437.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN GIUNCHIGLIANI SECONDED THE MQTION.

Assemblyman Anderson:
That would be the amendments 1, 2, and 37

Chairwoman Buckley:

Yes. This was the consensus bill that was worked on by the parks and the
tenants., H any of them have concern, we want to make sure that we are
preserving the consensus of that group, which is very difficult at times.
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THE MOTION CARRIED. {Assemblymen Parks and Arberry were not
present for the vote.)

Chairwoman Buckley:
Next we will hear A.B. 464.

Assembly Bill 464: Makes various changes regarding manufacture, sale and use
of tobacco products, {(BDR 32-1028}

Diane Thorntan, Committee Policy Analyst:

[Submitted Exhibit Q.1 This bill was sponsored by the Committee on Ways and
Means, and was heard on April 8, 2005, This bill prohibits possession of an
unstamped cigarette package by any person other than a wholesale dealer. The
bill requires manufacturers and wholesale dealers to provide periodic reports of
shipments of cigarette packages to the Department of Taxation. Procedures are
also established for accepting, mailing, or shipping orders of cigarettes, which
include compliance with the state licensure and reporting requirements through
the Department of Taxation. Licensure is also required for certain retail dealers,
wholesale dealers, and manufacturers. This bill authorizes the Department to
impose civil penalties for failure to comply with these laws. Criminal penalties
are also specified for actions intended to defraud the State.

Three amendments have been proposed to this bill behind Tabs H, I, and J.
Under Tab H is an amendment (Exhibit P) proposed by the Office of the
Attorney General, Single Stick, USA Distributing, Nevada Pstroleum Marketers,
the Convenience Store Association, Retail Association of Nevada, Phillip Morris
USA, and R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Company. This amendment was presented to
the Committee during the hearing on the bill.

Under Tab | is an amendment (Exhibit Q) proposed by Sam McMulien and Phillip
Morris. This amendment addresses the concerns voiced by Daryl Capurro of the
Nevada Motor Transport Association. It is my understanding that Mr. McMullen
and Mr. Capurro worked on this one together.

Behind Tab J is an amendment (Exhibit R} proposed by the Office of the
Attorney General, Retail Asscciation of Nevada, Phillip Morris, and
R.J, Reynolds Tobacco Company. The amendment hifurcates the sffective date
of the hill,
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Chairwoman Buckley:
| think that was the only question that had come up on the bill,

Assemblyman Anderson:
I am unclear on something. The amendment behind Tab J is also part of the
AG’s recommendation?

Diane Thornton:
Yes, that is my understanding.

ASSEMBLYMAN HETTRICK MOVED TO AMEND AND DO PASS
ASSEMBLY BILL 464.

ASSEMBLYWOMARN GIUNCHIGLIANI SECONDED THE MOTION.,
THE MOTION CARRIED, {Assemblymen Parks and Arberry were not

present for the vote.)

Chairwoman Bucldey:
Let’s look at A.B. b55.

Assembly Bill 655: Makes various changes relating to provisions governing
medical professionals. (BDR 54-570)

Diane Thornton, Committee Policy Analyst:

[Submitted Exhibit S.1 A.B. 655 was sponsored by Assemblyman Mabey and
was heard on April 11, 2005. This bill relates to medical professions. The
restricted license of an administrative physician is revised and further specifies
that the administrative physician may not engage in the practice of clinical
medicine. Several provisions related to the practice of allopathic and osteopathic
medicine are also revised in this bill. In addition, the bill provides that a
practitioner of respiratory care licensed under Chapter 630 of NRS does not
have to be licensed under the chapter governing medical laboratories, The
measure also defines a “licensed physician assistant.”

There are four amendments that have been proposed. Behind Tab K are two
amendments (Exhibit T} proposed by Keith Lee from the Board of Medical
Examiners. Under Tab L is an amendment (Exhibit U) offered by Assemblyman
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Mabey. Behind Tab M is an amendment (Exhibit V) from Daniel Royal, president
of the Board of Homeopathic Medical Examiners,

Chairwoman Buckley:

| would recommend that we accept amendments K and L. Amendment K
{Exhibit T) was discussed by Mr. Lee, and the second was Assemblyman Mabey
(Exhibit U} wanting to lower those fees a little bit. | know Dr. Royal wanted to
put in language about the homeopaths, but they should get their own bill to do
that. | don’t think we should do that. They were just angry that they were never
consulted, and | understand that. | know what it feels like, but it doesn’t seem
approptiate.

Diane Thornton:

On number 1, Keith Lee’s amendment, where it says deleting Sactions 7, 8, 9,
12, and 13, it should be only a portion of Saction 13. | believe there are several
aeffective dates.

Chairwoman Buckley:
We will have the record reflect that, and we will have Legal fix the effective
dates. ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN CONKLIN MOVED TG AMEND AND DO PASS
ASSEMBLY BILL 655.

ASSEMBLYMAN HETTRICK SECONDED THE MOTION.

THE MOTION CARRIED. {Assemblymen Parks and Arberry were not
present for the vote.)

Chairwoman Buckley:
That is the end of our Work Session Document.

Assemblyman Conklin:
Werg we pushing A.B. 19 back?

Chairwoman Buckley:
It's Mr. Parks’s bill and he is not here, so | was just going to wait.

Assemblyman Anderson:
| saw an amendment here for A.B. 317, and | didn’t know whether or not it was

on the handout.
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Chairwoman Buckley:
Yes, that was the prostitution tax amendment. Back to our hearing agenda.
Why don’t we go ahead and open the public hearing on A.B. 67.

Assembly Bill 67: Authorizes Department of Taxation to suspend or revoke
business licenses. {BDR 32-392)

Dino DiCianno, Deputy Executive Director for Compliance, Nevada Department
of Taxation:

A.B. 87 is being brought before you on behalf of the Department of Taxation.
The bill authorizes the Department to suspend or revoke a business license if it
is found that the business is not in compliance with the provisions of the
business license in statute and with respect to the regulations. | want to be very
clear here that this is not an anti-business bill, it does allow the Department
some discretion because it is permissive, It says the Department may revoke or
suspend a business license., That particular business, if the Department
determines that they are in violation of the statutes of the regulations, will be
afforded a hearing. If they are unsatisfied with the determination of the hearing
officer, they can appeal to the Nevada Tax Commissions. If we find that the
taxpayer is in compliance, we will issue the business license.

Vice Chairman QOceguera:
Seeing no one wishing to testify either way, | will close the hearing on A.B. 67
and open the hearing on A.B. 68.

Assembly Bill 68: Authorizes Department of Taxation to deny licenses or
permits to persons liable to Department for payment of money. {BDR 32-
390}

Dino DiCianno, Deputy Executive Director-Compliance, Nevada Department of
Taxation:
A.B. 68 is being brought to you on behalf of the Department of Taxation. The
bill allows the Department to deny licenses or permits to persons liable to the
Department for payment of money. We get calls all of the time from businesses
who are in competition with other businesses stating that these people are not
in compliance, and asking why we aren’t doing something about this. That is
the purpose of this bill, We just want to make sure those businesses that are in
compliance are being competitively competed againgt by businesses that have
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complied with all of the rules and regulations with respect to the payment of
taxes. We also want to be able to determine, if they do have a liability, that it
provides an additional collection tool for the Department to collect that ptior to
us giving them a new permit or a renewal on the permit that they may have.

Vice Chairman Oceguera:
I will close the hearing on A.B. 68 and open the public hearing on A.B. 320.

Assembly Bill 320: Proposes to authorize Legislature to prescribe temporary
exemptions from sales and use taxes to provide for sales tax holidays.
(BDR 32-1201)

Assemblyman Richard Perkins, Assembly District No. 23, Clark County:

A.B. 320 as it is written would take to the voters an amendment to our sales
and use tax in such a way that would allow the Legislature to create a sales tax
holiday. This would allow Nevada to join 12 other states in offering their
families relief, usually around back-to-school time, by setting aside a few days
where certain purchases are not charged sales tax. Every state handles its sales
tax holidays differently —which items are taxed and not taxed. The length of the
holidays varies from state 1o state also. Regardless of how it is implemented, a
sales tax holiday would benefit everyone. It would be a boon for Nevada's
businesses, relief for Nevada’s taxpayers, and a windfall for our economy at
large.

In other states, people will go in droves from neighboring states to find sales tax
holidays. Businesses see record sales in response. There is even a website that
catalogs for deal-savvy consumers each state that has a holiday and when it is.
Extra money for these businesses will allow them to expand their operations in
our state, benefiting our consumers and our economic base. Taxpayers will see
the benefits through being able to spend a little extra or save a little extra by
not paying sales tax,

Imagine if we instituted a sales tax holiday to correspond with the
back-to-school shopping season. The National Retail Federation says that the
average family in 2004 would spend about $219 on clothes for the new school
year. At 7 percent, this comes to about $16 in savings just on clothing
purchases alone. While this may not seem like a lot, those few extra dollars can
be spent on a pair of jeans that last a little jonger or those shoes that don't
wear out so quickly. This is just if we exempt clothing. The savings would be
even larger if we included supplies and computers.
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[Assemblyman Perkins, continued.] Benefits for our taxpayers and our
businesses translate into a stronger economy across the board. There has been
much discussion this session of the best way to get a little extra state money
back to taxpayers. | believe this is the way to do it. Instead of just a one-shot
allocation, these savings will translate into savings over the long run. It is
something that taxpayers will be able to count on year after year through
stronger business, better savings, and a strong econamy.

The bill as it is written provides for a question to be placed on the ballot, since
the 2 percent siate sales tax cannot be differed by this Legislature. The State
also needs to consider that whatever we do should fall in line with the
streamlined sales tax questions posed throughout this country. With that in
mind, it might even be a better bill if we were to take the one that is before you
and, instead of putting @ question before the ballot, exempt everything but the
2 percent sales tax this year. We can do virtually anything we need to this year,
prior to the end of the year. January 1, 2006 is the cut-off date for the
streamlined sales tax agreements throughout the country and is the date that
will have to remain in compliance.

Assemblywoman Giunchigliani:
Do we have a high and a low amount projected cost impact?

Assemblyman Perkins:
We do have some. | know Fiscal is working on additional numbers as well.

Assemblywoman Giunchigliani;
So if we move it, it will go toc Ways and Means anyways.

Assemblyman Perkins:

Yes, it will be a Ways and Means question. Should this Committee decide to
process this bill, it depends on what is exempted from sales tax, whether it is
just clothing; clothing and school supplies, including computers; or opening the
door completely if somebody decided that is when they want to purchase a new
automobile, So, it depends on which items this state would want to eaxempt.

Assemblywoman Giunchigliani:
We have a lot of exemptions that we are dealing with this time around, and we
just need to be careful and track that.

Assemblyman Perkins:

I have stated many times this legislative session that, assuming the numbers are
real and we finish this session with as healthy a surplus as has been suggested,
we have a partniership with our taxpayers, and some should be returned. | know
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there has been a great deal of criticism on the DMV [Department of Motor
Vehicles] rebate and other things. This would be one additional option,

[Assemblyman Perkins, continued.] | have in front of me the chart from the
12 states that had sales tax holidays in 2004 and the estimated percent loss in
annual sales tax collections by state based upon their experience and the items
included in the exemption. It averages between one-tenth of a percent and
three-tenths of a percent throughout the country. That is as restricted to just
clothing in lowa, Texas, Fiorida, and many of the states, as well as all retail
items in the state of Massachusetts.

Assemblyman Sherer;
Do the other states have just a one-day holiday, or is it a two-day holiday, and
do they have a couple of them or just one?

Assemblyman Perkins:

The average is a three-day sales tax holiday. It is oftentimes Friday through
Sunday the weekend before school starts, or a couple of weekends before, to
give some the opportunity to provide for back-to-school. Vermont actually did
two separate sales tax holidays, as did the District of Columbia.

For the benefit of the Committee, | will have this document sent to the rest of
the Committee.

Christina Dugan, Director, Government Affairs, Las Vegas Chamber of
Commerce, Las Vegas, Nevada:
| have a letter (Exhibit W) that } would like to place on the record. We are in
favor of A.B. 320 because we believe a sales tax holiday would be good for the
businesses of the state of Nevada, both in terms of their opportunity to provide
more sales and their opportunity to participate in a sales tax holiday. As a
result, we would ask the Committee as a policy position for future sales tax
holidays to ensure that they were across the board, and that everyone is able 1o
participate in them, because everyone pays the sales tax in one form or another.

George Ross, Legislative Advocate, representing Retail Association of Nevada:
The Retail Association of Nevada is wholeheartedly in support of this bill,
particularly the back-to-school holiday concept, It is an excellent opportunity 1o
help Nevada’s working families. This is a good opportunity to purchase those
school supplies and other supplies that they may need at a reduced rate.
Perhaps they could even buy better materials for their children, We think this
would be both an excellent opportunity to help Nevada's working families to
give back some of the surplus and to stimulate Nevada’s business as well,
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Vice Chairman Oceguera:

I will close the hearing on A.B. 320 and open the hearing on A.B, 387,

Assembly Bill 387: Provides for reduction, under certain circumstances, of
certain excise taxes imposed on employers. (BDR 32-198)

Assemblyman Lynn Hettrick, Assembly District No. 39, Douglas, Carson {part)
and Washoe {part):

in 1995, | was encouraged by several physicians from Reno to pass a bill
creating medical savings accounts, It was quite progressive at the time. The
problem was that medical savings accounts were never utilized in the state of
Nevada because there was no mechanism to fund medical savings accounts,
which were generally funded by a deduction from an employer’'s taxes, and a
deposit was made into the medical savings account, Since we didn't have any
broad-based business tax, no one ever activated a medical savings account. A
year or two ago, the federal government changed the medical savings account
provisions and created a new category called a health savings account {HSA}.

Their idea was that because the cost of medical insurance is getting so high,
they wanted to come up with something that would foster the purchase of
health insurance by allowing a very high deductible health insurance plan, which
lowers the premium. That proved not to be terribly practical because it left the
employee with a huge deductible and large copay. They developed the health
savings account, which says that the employer can deposit into a health savings
account for the employee for the purpose of paying high deductibles and
copays, a reduction of the employer’'s tax. In the last session, we passed a
modified business tax, which is not broad based. It applies to every business in
the state of Nevada. We now have an opportunity to take advantage of the
HSA program sestablished by the federal government to provide more people in
the state of Nevada with health insurance.

It is an opportunity that will not make a huge difference, but it is a step in the
right direction, and perhaps we can get some people to either retain or buy
health insurance for employees that they otherwise would not have purchased.
We have a fiscal note (Exhibit X). The bill is very simple.

The bill amends NRS chapters 363A and 363B. The language in both chapters is
identical. Beginning in Section 1, subsection 1, it simply says that an employer
may abate the tax if he is participating in this program. The interasting part that
we put in the bill is that if an employer decides to do this, we phased in the tax
deduction that they are allowed to make from the modified business tax. We
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phased it in so that it has minimal impact on the State of Nevada. Whatever the
amount of the tax abatement, the employer must divide that abatement equally
amonygst all of his employees who opt to get inte an HSA. The highest-paid
executive in the company and the lowest-paid worker in the company will get
the exact same benefit. It will be equal for all. That is what lines 8 through 10
say, the idea being that the person who could least afford the high deductible or
the copay would be the person who was the lowest paid. The highest-paid
person in the company could afford to pay more, so it will take longer for his
copays to be covered relative to his wages.

[Assemblyman Hettrick, continued.] Lines 11 through 15 limit who can use this.
People who are already covered by Medicare, Medicaid, or negotiated bargaining
agreements are not eligible. To minimize the fiscal impact to the state of
Nevada, we limited this to those folks who are not covered by those items. This
would go to companies and employees who have no health coverage or limited
health coverage relative to these other people that are in lines 11 through 15.

Lines 16 through 21 say nothing but that the abatement must equal the
contributions, The employer cannot abate $1,000 but only contribute $800,
Page 2, lines 1 through 10 show the phase-in, so it has minimal impact upon
the budget, Lines 11 through 17 say if you don't pay it, you owe the money
back to the Department of Taxation. When we did the modified business tax,
we put in a deduction for health insurance before the tax is calculated. This
simply says that this deduction is in addition to that. You calculate the payroll,
subtract the premium for health insurance, and then calculate the tax. You
would lower the amount that this would apply to. It reduces the amount of tax.

Section 2 is identical to Section 1. It just applies to the other section of
NRS 363, which pertains to the other employers. Section 3 of the bill changes
the term “medical savings account,” which is in the existing law, to "health
savings account” so it comports with the federal changes.

The Department of Taxation has looked at this. They have given a fiscal note
{Exhibit X). The programming cost to allow this to be done is $57,000 in the
first year of the biennium. Fiscal years 2005 and 2006 will have a $23,000
cost to the State estimated to begin to initiate HSAs in the first year of the
biennium; $49,000 in the second. It is estimated that after fully phased in, the
effect on future biennia is $188,000, This is a very low cost to the State of
Nevada, probably a blip on the State’s income relative to the entire budget. The
opportunity to have more people insured would be significant, and any one
person in the state of Nevada who took advantage of this in a major claim
would potentially receive more from having health insurance coverage than the
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whole $188,000, which is over future biennia. The cost of this is $90,000 a
year, It is extremaly minimal to try to get people covered by health insurance.

Assemblyman Seale:

| just happened to enter into an HSA last week for myself. It caused my
insurance cost to drop by half. There are other things that you get to do inside
an HSA in conjunction with the federal government that make it an incredibly
attractive option. | think that the State participating in something like this is
something that we should definitely do, particularly since its cost is so low.
When word gets out, small businesses are going to look at this as a significant
opportunity to provide health care for their employees and cantrol costs in a
very significant way. | applaud you for this legislation.

Assemblyman Hettrick:

1 did have an opportunity to meet with membors of the insurance industry about
this bill. It is very interesting. They told me that HSAs are hard to explain when
you try to sell these in the general public. Pecple have a tough time with it, and
it really hasn't gone very far. They said this will really make a difference
because the cost of health insurance Is getting so high that right now there are
many small employers in the state of Nevada who are paying $600 a month per
employee. The cost of an HSA policy with the very high deductible drops down
to the range of $120 to $250 a month per employee, compared to $600. If you
take a business with 20 employees, that could save $250 a month per
employee on health insurance. That is $5,000 a month; a huge savings,
Otherwise, they might have dropped health insurance entirely. Then they come
back with a tax abatement from the State of Nevada under this program and
fund the copay for the employee. The employee comes out with the same
benefit, but the cost to the employer goes way down and will keep far more
people insured in the state of Nevada. Hopefully, Nevada will gain some insured
as they lsarn how this works.

Assemblyman Conklin:

I was under the impression that the employese will have control of the employer
part that has been donated. Is that correct? {Assemblyman Hettrick answered in
the affirmative.] That is one of the key criteria for this.

Assemblyman Hettrick:

| will address that fully for the record. Yes, an HSA is an amount of money
actually deposited to the employee’s health savings account. The employes
controls the account. The employee can spend from that account for the copay,
the deductible, or other medical expenses. He receives that money tax-free and
controls the money. If he leaves that business, he takes the money with him.
The money goes to the next employer, if they have a health savings account
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plan. If they don’t, the employee still gets to keep the money and spend it for
medical expenses until it is gone.

Assemblywoman Gansert:

In the bill, you are funding the equivalent of whatever the tax would be, but
employers can also fund additional money if they choose to, once they establish
the HSAs.

Assemblyman Hettrick:

Yes, | believe that is correct. | actually didn't become an expert on the HSA
plan, but yes, the employer is entitled to make the contributions. | am not
certain that the employee can’t ask that money be deducted before tax and put
in as well, There are people here who can answer those questions better than |,
For those that haven't seen this, or for those on the Internet, this phases in at
10 percent the first year, and an additional 10 percent annually on the amount
that can be abated, up to 50 percent of the tax that an employer could owe to
the State of Nevada. If it got to 50 percent, he would have to be dividing that
equally amongst all of the employees with an HSA and give every one of them
an equal share of that amount.

Assemblyman Conklin:

It is my understanding, when you say equal share, you mean throughout the
range of the company. So, if you have a $9-an-hour employee at the bottom,
and a $200-an-hour at the top, the actual amount that goes into their health
savings account is equal in real dollars.

Assemblyman Hettrick:

Absolutely; that is exactly what the bill says. The person on the bottom end of
the pay scale is the one who needs the most halp with the high deductibles and
high copay. The person on the higher end of the scale would get the same
amount, but would have the ability, if need be, to make up the difference more
aasily. That is why we did equal. We are trying to reach the people who would
otherwise not be able to get health insurance. The reality is that a highly paid
executive could go out and buy health insurance outside of the company. The
lower-paid employee could not afford to do that and would have no coverage.
We are trying to compensate for that.

Chairwoman Buckley:
Right now, you get a credit on our modified business tax for health care plans.
Are health savings accounts now covered?
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Assemblyman Hettrick:

No, they are not. The premium could be, but you are not covering the health
savings account portion, which is the amount that is deposited for the
employee’s ability to cover his deductible. We currently calculate the tax by
determining the total payroll, subtract the premium for health insurance, and
then calculate the tax. If your premium goss down, you would pay more, but if
you could get a bigger credit to give people in the HSA, it would be minimal. If
your premium goes up because you didn’t have health insurance previously for
your employees, you would get a deduction, and then you would stili be able to
take something out on the abatement to give to the employee to cover the
deductible and the copays.

Chairwoman Buckley
So why aren’t health savings accounts receiving the benefit of what we did last
session? Is it because the employer's contribution is not considered a premium?

Assemblyman Hettrick:

The premium portion of the health savings account, the high deductible
insurance, would be deducted from the calculation for the modified business
tax, whether it is an HSA plan, a high deductible plan, or any other plan. You
get to deduct it. The part that is not deducted is the deposit to the employee’s
actual health savings account, That is what we are deducting here by doing the
abatement.

Chairwoman Buckley:
Is that the employer's share or the employee’s share?

Assemblyman Hettrick:

The employer’s shara. The employee can make a deposit if he wishes by a
pretax deduction, at his option. The employer who is buying the insurance is
getting to abate a part of his liability to the state of Nevada to give that to the
employse to cover the deductible and copay.

Assemblyman Conklin:

| signed onto this bill because | thought it was very good, particularly for small
business, What is happening with small business is they are being squeezed out
of exceptional health care plans because they are too costly. This bill allows you
to buy a plan with a higher deductible and then open a savings account
controlled by the employee. The money that the employer puts into that
account cannot be taken back; it is the employee’s money now. It can be
deducted, and that money must be spent to pay the part of health care costs
that is not covered by the program. This HSA can be deposited into by the
employer and the employee, but the employer’s deposit then becomes tax
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deductible under the payroll tax, even though it is not going towards the
premiums; it is covering the cost of copays, prescriptions, et cetera,

Chairwoman Buckley:

i am very skeptical about health savings accounts. Nationally, they are being
decried on the basis of adverse selection. The folks that generally pick them are
healthier individuals, causing more affordability crisis through adverse selection
and a shifting of the risks. There have also been some papers and studies
suggesting that it discourages preventative care by focusing maore on funding
catastrophic needs. Someone saves for the heart, but neglects the visit that
could have prevented the heart attack, obscuring our movement over the last
decade towards prevention. | recognize the argument that it is better than
hothing because of the incredible costs that small businesses are facing, which
is why we did the interim committee with the HIFA [Health Insurance Flexibility
and Accountability]l waiver proposal. | worry about all of those issues. | worry
about adverse selection, a sense of reliance on the plan, and the public policy of
discouraging more preventative services. | wonder as a nation whether we
should be doing more to come up with a solution to our broken health care
system, rather than relying on this method, which has so many problems,
according to the scholars,

Assemblyman Hettrick:

In terms of adverse selection in the way we are funding this, every employee in
a business, if this were explained to them, would go out and get an HSA. They
are going to get free money from their employer and health coverage that they
may not have otherwise had, and they can spend it on any medical bill, tax free,
as long as it is on a deductible medical bili. In this plan, the way it is funded,
there is no reason for every employee not to do this, should the employer go
this way. | don’t think adverse selection applies to this funding method because
everyone is going to benefit the same.

In terms of prevention, the important part of this is that the employee controls
the plan. As long as he spends the money on medical care, he can spend it in
any form, preventative or otherwise, prescriptions, anything that is tax
deductible under the federal law. In this case, the biggest negative | can see in
terms of prevention is that when you start the plan, there is not a huge amount
of money, maybe $300 a year or something like that. 1t is not a huge amount of
money to cover a $%1,000 deductible. I, in the meantime, you had a
catastrophic event and spent your deductible money in your HSA, you would
not be able to buy preventative care, because you wouldn't have any more
money in the HSA, That is true; however, you got your $1,000 deductible
covered for the catastrophic. If you didn't have catastrophic, you would have
the money in your account to cover preventative care. Fither way, | don’t sese
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how anyone loses on this deal. 1 understand the long-term argument nationally
about people doing this, but we purposely tried to fund this with equality so
that everyone would benefit the same. There is no adverse selection in this bill,

Chairwoman Buckley:

It is not in the bill, it is in the concept of HSAs in general. As | understand, with
the HSA law, the deductible could be as high as $10,000. The low end is
$1,000, but §10,000 is the high end. | think the concern is that if the younger
and healthier people switch to HSAs, will the health insurance then become too
costly for everyone else? What does that do with the other health care plans,
whieh have better coverage? They then have additional adverse selection
because they have older and sicker individuals., So, the plans which provide
more coverage end up, because people switch out of them, having to raise their
costs to pay for the younger individuals who choose HSAs. | could go on for
hours on HSAs, but ] won't.

Assemblyman Seale:

| mentioned that | had just recently involved myself in an HSA high-deductible
policy. The way that | was looking at that was to roll back a couple of years
and was looking at a catastrophic event that | had. Had | had an HSA high-
deductible policy, it would have saved me significant amounts of money
because of the copay that was required. At the time, | ended up having to pay,
out of pocket, over six figures in order to meet the policy. | was healthy at the
time; | am probably less so now. In terms of the preventative care, even with
the HSA, [ intend to go on the same schedule that | have been going on for the
last few years. | like the idea a lot. | think there are some policy issues that
naed to be dealt with, but | think this is the right direction to go.

Larry Hurst, Vice President, Public Affairs, Nevada State Board of Health
Underwriters:

[Read from Exhibit Y.] We are here today as a nonpartisan, factual resource

regarding private health insurance solutions,

We seek to improve our consumers’ ability to meet their health,
financial, and retirement security needs through education and
advocacy. We are the premiere professional organization with over
400 agents and brokers locally and over 20,000 members
nationally. We represent employer and individual heaith benefits for
thousand of Nevadans. Our goal is to improve employers' access to
benefit plans while saving them money. We respectfully request
vour support for A.B. 387. This bill will assist Nevada employers
on the verge of losing access to benefits as well as offering
affordable and quality health insurance.
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[Larry Hurst, continued.] Progressive bills such as A.B. 493, the
HIFA Waiver demonstration initiative, and A.B. 387 recognize the
importance of offering accessible and affordable health benefits for
Nevadans. These bills are a step in the right direction to assist
Nevada employers that struggle to offer health benefits for their
employees. Our consumers will be thankful for your support, as
they wili benefit from these bills.

Health savings accounts are a new option for health insurance,
They have two parts. The first part is a health insurance policy that
covers large medical bills. The second part of the health savings
account is an investment account or retirement account from
which one can withdraw money tax free for medical care.
Otherwise, the money accumulates with tax-free interest until
retirement, when one can withdraw for any purpose and pay
rnormal income taxes.

Health savings accounts are a new way for consumers to pay for
medical expenses. As of January 1, 2004, anyone with a qualified
high-deductible health plan can also have a health savings account.
HSAs save money on current medical care and provide a good way
to save for future medical expenses. HSA funds can pay for
expenses before a deductible is met and help pay for services not
covered by one's health plan, COBRA [Consolidated Omnibus
Budget Reconciliation Act] coverage during periods of
unemployment, medical expenses after retirement, and long-term
care expenses, to name just a few.

A high-deductible health plan can be obtained through an employer
or a policy purchased individually. Even if one obtains a
high-deductible health plan or even an HSA account through an
employer, that account is individually owned. You decide how
much to contribute, how much of the account to use for medical
expenses, and which medical expenses to pay from that account.
You also choose whether to pay for medical expenses from the
account or save it for future use. Even if you change jobs, your
health savings account is stili yours.

You can keep the account even if you move to another state, and
you can continue to keep it as you grow older. Regardless of where
you get your health insurance plan, whether on your own or
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through your employer, your health savings account funds are
yours,

fLarry Hurst, continued.] Unlike some other types of accounts, you
don't fose HSA funds at the end of the year. Unspent balances
remain in your account earning interest until you spend them on
medical care. This is a strong incentive for you to spend wisely on
your medical care, just like you do on other items you purchase.
You’'ll want to shop around for the best value for your health care
dollars.

High-deductible health plans have a piece in them called preventive care, which
is not subject to deductible. When you go to see yeur OB-GYN and your primary
care provider, it is just a regular copayment, You are getting preventive care
whenever you choose. The deductibles range from $1,000 for an individual, and
$2,850 if you have a family. Your deductible is reachable. A couple of large
medical bills will get you to that deductible very quickly, and then vyour
insurance kicks in. My company offers an 80-60 plan, 80 percent in network,
60 percent out of network, Once that deductible is met, insurance kicks in.

Jack Kim, Legislative Advocate, representing Nevada Association of Health
Plans:

We just want to go on the record in support of this bill and any other legislation

that addresses the uninsured. We have had an uninsured problem in the state

for years.

Donal Hummer, Jr., Vice President, Government Affairs, Harley-Davidson
Financial Services:

Harley-Davidson would like to go on the record in support of this bill, i believe

this would be a great thing for the state of Nevada, especially for smaller

employers who cannot afford a conventional medical plan,

Bill Uffelman, President, Nevada Bankers Association:

We support this bill. My counterpart in another state was offered the program
through Blue Cross. They had to research how to set up HSAs for these folks.
The bank employees thought it was a better plan, so they got in on it too. 1t
mushroomed for them in a rural lowa setting. | have suggested to the Nevada
Bankers that they ought to be looking at this, because one of their concerns and
complaints is the cost of health care for their employees, They want to be able
to provide it. We think this is a good bill and endorse it.
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Bob Ostrovsky, Legislative Advocate, representing Nevadans for Affordable
Health Care:
We rise in support, We would like to support anything that makes it easier for
employers to purchase insurance for their employees. When we did the tax
package last session, we created this payroll tax deduction for premiums and
created a lot of language for self-insured employers. We never thought about
self-insured employees. These are employees who are setting money aside. We
creatad a whole mechanism to allow self-insured employers to deduct the

money, but never thought about the process of HSAs. | think they were too

new, We just wanted to be on the record.

Chairwoman Buckley:

Brenda, in your opinion, can we already deduct? Bob mentioned that we didn’t
envision this, Would you clarify whether you think HSAs are already covered
under the law?

Brenda Erdoes, Legislative Counsel:

The provisions of NRS 363B are very broadly worded and already say that any
payments for any kind of health benefits or health insurance benefits can be
included in the deduction against the modified business tax. It even says such
other similar payments for health care or insurance for health care for
employees or authorized by the Department. It could be deducted, but | think
this bill provides for abatement, which is an additional amount of money that
would be a set-off. So, yes, they can already allow for the money that the
employer puts in for these MSAs to be deducted from the amount of the tax
due. This bill would provide for additional money that could come off of that,

Chairwoman Buckley:
What additional money? If it is already alflowed to be deducted, is that creating
a double standard?

Brenda Erdoes, Legislative Counsel:

i'm not sure if it's a double standard, but the abatement would be for the full
amount of the tax due, rather than the way the deduetion is currently working
in the statute itself,

Assamblyman Hettrick:

| believe Brenda is correct. The premium for an HSA is the exact same premium
that we currently allow an employer to deduct prior to calculating his tax liability
under the modified business tax. Yes, they are able to do an HSA plan today, as
the law exists. The intent of this bill is to help fund the high deductible portion
for the employee who receives this insurance package, because it may be all the
employer can afford. if you will give the money from this abatement to your
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employee, you can take it off your tax. That is what this bill is allowing, simply
that they will be able to deduct a percentage of their modified business tax
annually up to 50 percent, and give that to the employee to cover the
deductible cost. it would still be a part of the insurance cost in terms of what
comes off the modified business tax. That is the effect of what this is doing. If
the employer doesn’t get abatement on his tax, then he would be paying the
premium and having to give additional money to the employee to help fund an
HSA, and that won't happen.

Chairwoman Buckley:
Brenda, from a legal point of view, is that correct?

Brenda Erdoes:

Yes, | agree with what Mr. Hettrick is saying. This is in addition to being able to
deduct whatever health benefits you can deduct from the tax. It is just a
percentage that goes from 10 percent for the first year up to 50 percent. It is a
phase-in, and it is actually 50 percent of your tax liability that you can deduct.
The first thing that is currently under the law as it stands is that it is a
one-for-one: whatever dollars you put in for buying health insurance for your
employees, you can take off your tax within the parameters of the bill. This is In
addition to that, The point is that the employer would be expected to be making
payments to health insurance plans in addition 1o these health savings accounts,
and that currently isn‘t allowed under the provisions of the law.

Chairwoman Buckley:
That is clear as mud.

Danny Thompson, Executive Secretary-Treasurer, Nevada State AFL-CIO:
We have the very same concern that you have with these types of
arrangements. We don’t support these. Ultimately, you are going to impact the
cost to people with better policies. You are going to drive people to the most
expensive care—no preventative care—and they are going to end up in the
emergency rooms. That is our concern with these types of arrangements.

Nancy Ford, Administrator, Welfare Division, Nevada Department of Human
Resources:
[Submitted Exhibit Z.] | don't have a position on the bill, but | have some
concerns about the language regarding exempting people who are sligible for
Medicaid and Medicare. A condition of our State plan for participation in the
Medicaid program is that we safeguard the information regarding recipients and
applicants of Medicaid. | don’t know how the Department of Taxation would get
this information. We would be unable to share information with the Department
of Taxation or with employers as to who is a recipient of Medicaid. For
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Medicare, that is a federal agency, and | am not sure if they would be able to
share that information, either,

Chairwoman Buckiey:
I will close the public hearing on A.B. 387 and open the public hearing on
A.B. 503.

Assembly Bill 503: Extends period duting which Department of Taxation may
issue deficiency determination under certain conditions. {(BDR 32-389)

Dinc DiCianno, Deputy Executive Director for Compliance, Nevada Department
of Taxation:

A.B. 503 is on behalf of the Department of Taxation. The bill tolls the statutory
period during which the Department can review the entire liability of a business
when they file a claim for a refund, If the business is owed a refund, they will
get a refund. Our concern is that when we get these requests for refunds, it is
only one particular item out of their entire liability. We want to be able to audit
that entire liability and make adjustments to that refund if they do owe other
taxes.

Assemblywoman Gansert:
I'm just wondering if there should be a time frame so someone is not pending a
refund for a year or two.

Dinc DiCianno:

if | understand your guestion correctly, you want 1o make sure that the
Department, when it receives a refund request, acts within a certain time frame.
Currently, there are provisions in statute. if the Department does not act on a
refund within a six-month period, it is deemed to be appealed. We are required
within a six-month period to make a determination whether they are entitled to
a refund or not. That already exists within statute.

Chairwoman Buckley:
Seeing no further testimony, | wili close the public hearing on A.B. 503,

ASSEMBLYMAN SHERER MOVED TO AMEND AND DO PASS
Assembly Bill 503.

ASSEMBLYMAN HETTRICK SECONDED THE MOTION,
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THE MOTION CARRIED. {Assemblyman Oceguera, Assemblyman
Anderson and Assemblywoman McClain were not present for the
vote.)

Chairwoman Buckley:
I will open the hearing on A.B. 5564,

Assembly Bill 554: Makes various changes to provisions governing taxation.
(BDR 32-1344)

Assemblyman David Parks, Assembly District No. 41, Clark County:
This is the bill that attempts to clarify five different provisions of the tax
measures that were enacted mostly in 5.B. 8 of the 20th Special Legislative

Session. The first clarification has to do with the determination of a business

and who is subject to the business license fee. The definition of a “business” is
revised in Section 1 of the bill to include only persons that supply a product or
service and not a person that consumes a service, The second provisions deals
with community banks. Community banks are often referred to as “hometown
banks.” These hometown bankers serve the same communities in which they
live, work, and play. Currently, there is not a definition of a community bank
within our statute. Section 2 of the bill defines a “community bank” as a bank
that is headquartered in the community it serves and is owned by an entity that
has less than $1 million in total banking assets. Section 3 exempts a hometown
bank in a community with less than 50,000 people from the excise fax, in
addition, in Section 4, a 1 percent modified business tax is imposed on these
hometown banks in a community with a population less than 100,000.

The next area is the live entertainment tax. This bill amends two items regarding
the live entertainment tax. The live entertainment tax was enacted as part of
S.B. 8 of the 20th Spacial Legislative Session. Section § clarifies that an entity
filed with the Nevada Secretary of State is a nonprofit corporation and is
exempt from the live entertainment tax. This clarification came about fram a
nonprofit high school rodec that was visited by the Department of Taxation.
Although they are considered a nonprofit, they are not a 501 nonprofit
organization, Currently, under NRS 368A.210, taxpayers are required to hold
live entertainment taxes in a separate checking account for payment, This
provision has required some smaller businesses to establish an account that may
only be used a few times a month. In addition, most of the other taxes could be
paid from the business’'s regular account. In researching this provision and
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discussing it with the Depariment of Taxation, there was no reason for this
provision; therefore, the bill repeals this statute.

[Assemblyman Parks, continued.] The next area was the use tax. Last year, at a
trade show in Las Vegas, auditors for the Department of Taxation were sent {o
collect the use tax on items that were being given away on the trade show
floor, Sections 8 and 7 of this bill exempt these freebies from the use tax.

Finally, the state transfer tax is our last item in this bill. It is currently in
Section 9 of NRS 375.080. It exempts a transfer assignment or other
conveyance of real property if the owner of the property is related to the person
to whom it is conveyed within the first degree of consanguinity, Under this
exemption, a child can add a parent’s name to a deed, but if a married couple
puts a parent’s name on the deed, the tax is owed. To alleviate this problem,
this section of NRS is amended by adding “or to the spouse of such a person”
in Section 8.

Assemblyman Seale;

If | could direct you to Section 2, in the definition of a community bank, it says
that the majority of its patrons reside, and is owned by an entity that has less
than $1 billion... That is a big number, Was that meant to be $100 million?

Assemblyman Parks:
$100 million seems to be a much more appropriate number,

Chairwoman Buckley:
Do either our Legal or Fiscal have any additional comments with regards to that
definition? Can anyone recall where that number came from and whether it

needs to be adjusted?

Tony Sanchez, Legislative Advocate, representing Las Vegas Convention and
Visitor's Authority:
We are in support of A.B. Bb4, particularly Sections 6 and 7. They had a
concern over the imposition of use taxes on free samples that are given at trade
shows. These sections are very broadly written. The Department of Taxation
had a concern, which is very warranted, on just how broadly that could be read.
We propase a slight change to the end of both Sections 6 and 7, which wouid
make it clear that this is not related to high-priced items, These are typically
free items that are given away at trade shows and others, We propose language
that would read, at the end of line 23, “...only with respect to individual items
whose value does not exceed $100.” The trade show market has cutthroat
competition between various cities for very limited convention and trade show
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markets. It is our hope that this can be a streamlined provision; if these things
get up over $100, at that point the use taxes would come forward,

Carole Vilardo, President, Nevada Taxpayers Association:

In Section 1 of the bill, where we are trying to put a definition in to exempt
individuals that may have been captured, that was not the intent. | support that
provision, but there may be some language in S.B. 388 that would better
clarify, | further suggest that the fanguage be amended into NRS 363A and
363B, because we have had instances where individuals consume a service, not
provide it. For example, if you hire a nanny to watch your children after school
because you work, they are considered your part-time employee, but you feel
enough of a responsibility to be a good citizen and pay unemployment wages on
behalf of this employee, you are now defined as a business, because although
we defined “employee,” we never defined a “business”. | think that was the
intent. '

Chairwoman Buckley:
For the record, our staff found that it has to be carried down to those other
statutes. We already have that ready for work session.

Carole Vilardo:

Relative to NRS 363A and B, we sent letters to all of the members of the
L egislature last session. We have never supported industry-specific taxes. | do
not have a position specifically to that this year. On the basis that we have
never supported industry-specific taxes, if you are going to put something forth
as proposed in thess provisions, then we would ask that you do it across the
board for banks, At some point, there needs to be a little bit of pelicy, more
than just getting one industry or just getting revenue. In lieu of not hanging
some of these, we have had major complaints about the branch tax, particularly
in the rural communities. | would urge you to eliminate the tax. It did not turn
out to be a major revenue generator. At the very least, we could wind up
getting rid of that. Other than that, relative to the issues with nonprofit
corporations and clearing those, we too have had a lot of communication on
whether or not a nonprofit is captured. We do support those provisions as
clarifying points to the bill.

Scott Scherer, Legislative Advocate, representing Paramount Parks:

We have a brief proposed amendment {Exhibit AA} that we would like to
submit. We support the bill and the clarifications in it, but we would also like
further clarification as to the live entertainment tax. Paramount Parks operates
Star Trek: The Experience, in Las Vegas. It used to be exempt from the required
casino entertainment tax. That exemption was put in 1985. It was noted at the
time that they were considering building Star Trek: The Experience, and that it
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would be an example of interactive entertainment that would then be exempted
from the casino entertainment tax. They built that attraction in 1996 after the
exemption was granted, and then two years ago, the exemptions were all
eliminated. The tax was changed from the casino entertainment tax to a live
entertainment tax. Paramount, believing that their Star Trek: The Experience
was a motion simulator ride, or a digital 3D video, didn’t believe that they were
live entertainment.

[Scott Scherer, continued.] It was recently suggested to them that they may be
captured under the live entertainment tax because they do have their ride
attendants in costume and they do recite a few lines. They are arguably
providing some live entertainment, but the primary purpose of the ride is a
motion simulator amusement ride. People would not show up simply to see the
costumed attendants; they show up for the ride itself. This amendment would
clarify that live entertainment does not include entertainment that is incidental
to an amusement ride.

Each of these people, although they are in costume in order to enhance the
ambience of the ride, have other important functions. They provide safety and
security, and they make sure people move the ride at the appropriate pace,
because timing is everything. That is the reason for them, but they do try to
enhance the ride. As you have seen in theme parks all over the country, that is
the trend with these rides to try to make them a little bit more realistic, and to
create a little more of that environment so that people actually feel like they are
in that experience. That is the idea with this.

This amendment applies a primary purpose test, which is a test that has been
applied by the Nevada Supreme Court in other tax situations. It is a well-known
test to the courts in the State of Nevada.

Bill Uffelrnan, President, Nevada Bankers Association:

Nevada bankers are sseking a return to fairness and equity in Nevada's business
tax structure. In our opinion, Sections 2, 3, and 4 of A.B. 554 do not do that,
The bill defines “community bank” as a bank that is part of a holding company
with less than $1 billion in banking assets. By my calculation, approximately
30 of Nevada's 45-plus banks meet that portion of the bill. The bill then
exempts from the $7,000-per-year branch fee only those community banks
located in counties with a population less than 50,000. This seems 1o apply
only to 3 Nevada banks. Ironically, one of those banks is larger than at least 15
other Nevada banks, while the other 2 are larger than at least 5 other banks.
The payrell reduction for a community bank in a county with less than
100,000 population may apply to all 3 banks, although one of the banks has
branches in three counties. In many instances, rural Nevada communitiss are
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served solely by banks that do not qualify for these tax reductions. Because of
the smaller customer base, the cost of deing business in a rural community on a
per customer basis is higher whether a bank is large or small. In some cases,
you will now be giving a tax advantage to competitors who are located across
the street fram one another, similar to the credit union issue.

[Bill Uffelman, continued.] Nevada's bankers want restoration of a fair business
tax system, elimination of the $7,000-per-branch fee for all banks, and a
reduction of the 2 percent bank payroll tax to the 0.65 level paid by all other
employers. In our opinion, Sections 2, 3, and 4 of A.B. 6564 miss that mark.

Chairwoman Buckley:

| think there is some sense that we want to do something about the per branch
fee for the rural communities, whether we do it by defining community bank in
a different mannar, or whether we exempt out the first five or six branches as a
way to help the rural communities, What would your suggestion be if a
Legisiature wanted to reduce the per branch fee in the rural communities? What
method would achieve that goal?

Bill Uffelman:

There are large banks that have branches in rural Nevada. In some communities
there is only one branch present and that happens to be the branch of the large
hank. The only way that you could get a rural is to say that a branch located in
a county with a population of less than X would be exempt from the $7,000
fee, | have a number of memhbers who are small banks, many of them located in
Clark County. They typically have three or four branches at the most, Clark
County is clearly not rural, but they are smaller than at least one of the rural
banks, and in some cases smaller than all of the rural banks by the other
definition, You end up trying to determine how to allocate this $7,000-per-ysar
fee that raises $3 million for the state of Nevada. When all is said and done
with all of the cuts and cross-outs, | couldn’t even tell you what you would
wind up with as the leftovers out of that $3 million. At least with respect to the
$7,000, just making it go away, period, is probably the fairest thing one could
do for all bankers, large and small.

Alan Glover, Carson City Clerk-Recorder, Carson City, Nevada:

We are neutral on the bill but very supportive of Section 8, which deals with the
spousal exemption. We are here today to make you aware of S.B. 390, in which
we put some language that accomplishes what you want to do. We are
suggesting an amendment {Exhibit BB}. You may want to wait until you get a
conflict notice, but the language that we prefer is a transfer, assignment, or
other conveyance of real property if the owner of the property is related to the
person to whom it is conveyed within the first degree of lineal consanguinity or
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affinity. Affinity takes care of the spouse and corrects the situation in which
mom and pop want to deed to their son and daughter-in-law. If they want to go
that route at the moment, they have to pay the full tax on that. How you get
around that is to do two deeds. Mom and pop deed to their son, who turns
around and does another deed to himself and his wife, It just corrects that
problem. There is no revenue loss for the State; it is a slight revenue loss for the
counties, but we think it is fair and equitable. That language is in S.B. 390,
which it appears the Senate Taxation Committee is going to process. If you
processed vour bill, we would appreciate if you would consider our language in
thers.

Chairwoman Buckley:
Brenda, in your legal opinicn, does this language accomplish the same thing as
the language in the other bill?

Brenda Erdoes, Legislative Counsel:
Yes, | believe that it does. It allows you to make a transfer with your spouse
and their parents.

Chairwoman Buckley:
I will close the public hearing on A.B. 5564. Let's consider A,B. 67 from work

sassion.

Assembly Bill 67: Authotizes Department of Taxation to suspend or revoke
business licenses. (BDR 32-392)

ASSEMBLYMAN PERKINS MOVED TO Do PASS
ASSEMBLY BILL 67.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN ALLEN SECONDED THE MOTION.,
THE MOTION CARRIED. {Assembiyman  Anderson and

Assemblywoman McClain were not present for the vote.)

Chairwoman Buckley:
Let’s consider A.B. 68.
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Assembly Bill 68: Authorizes Department of Taxation to deny licenses or
permits to persons liable to Department for payment of money.
{BDR 32-390}

ASSEMBLYWOMAN GIUNCHIGLIANI MOVED TO AMEND AND DO
PASS ASSEMBLY BILL 68.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN GANSERT SECONDED THE MOTION.

THE MOTION CARRIED, {Assemblyman  Anderson  and
Assemblywoman McClain were not present for the vote.)

Chairwoman Buckley:
Let's go to A.B. 19.

Assembly Bill 19: Prohibits issuance of gift certificate that contains expiration
date and prohibits issuer of gift certificate from charging fee for inactivity
to buyer or holder of gift certificate. {(BDR 52-558)

Assemblyman David Parks, Assembly District No. 41, Clark County:

What you have is a revision of the bill. It included the changes that most of the-

opponents to the bill had requested, If there is a gift certificate that has an
expiration date or any fees, those fees must be clearly printed on the face of the
document in plain sight for somebody to see before they purchase the gift
certificate. There are a number of exemptions that it does not apply to. Those
are identified in the bill. It even has a provision for a toll-free phone number if
there are balances remaining on the bill. For the most part, | believe that | have
covered all of the concerns that the opponents had on the bill. The major
concerns are at the bottom of the first page and at the top of the second page.
It also deals with the telephone cards. That covers the provisions of the bill,

Assemblyman Seale:
Are these gift cards still going to the State?

Assemblyman Parks:

The presumption is that these would be cards that would have identification as
to the owner. There is a provision that after a particular date, if the card does
not have an expiration date, it would not expire. My understanding would be
that they would escheat to the State.
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Chairwoman Buckley:
Did you work with Dr, Hardy on the amendments {Exhibit CC) and on the bill?

Assemblyman Parks:
Yes, | did, and we got some input from Assemblyman Seale. We discussed the

major components of the bill.

Chairwoman Buckley:
We were also going to amend Assemblyman Hardy’s name on it as a ¢cosponsaor,

Assemblyman Parks:
Yes, that Is correct.

Assemblyman Seale:
A ot of this language came from llinois, which has very good unclaimed

property laws.

ASSEMBLYMAN SEALE MOVED TO AMEND AND DO PASS
ASSEMBLY BILL 19 WITH THE AMENDMENTS AND ADDING
ASSEMBLYMAN HARDY AS A SPONSOR.

ASSEMBLYMAN CONKLIN SECONDED THE MOTION.
THE MOTION CARRIED, (Assemblyman  Anderson and

Assemblywoman McClain were not present for the vote.)

Chairwoman Buckley:
Did we want to go back to A.B. 360, the cosmetologists?

Assembly Bill 360. Provides for regulation of persons who practice permanent
cosmetics, (BDR 43-925)

Chairwoman Buckley:
| sent one of the emails from someone who was concerned and | also sent a

couple of emails from Assemblywoman Weber. | had asked her to get
information on how often these tests are given and how much they cost. |
sense some folks are lukewarm, some are supportive. | think both

Assemblywoman Giunchigliani and Assemblyman Hettrick were comfortable
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moving it. | could go through some of the information | received in email for the
record. Looks like we are going to have a discussion first.

Assemblyman Hettrick:

| did see one of those emails. My first thought was that it wasn’t mueh of an
issue. | do see a concern with it requiring people to join a private organization,
not an institutional or licensing organization. | am not sure that is the
appropriate place to put them. | am for some kind of regulation; | am not
necessarily into forcing them to join a private organization.

Chairwoman Buckley:

Mr. Conklin concurs. | sense that there is a concern about the industry in
general. | think it is a matter of figuring out what is the right way to deal with it.
The Health Department would still have jurisdiction over the tattoos; should this
be a board or a test? Maybe it is even something for which we could ask the
counties to adopt a regulation to ensure some sort of quality control

Assemblywoman Giunchigliani:

| am looking back at the bill, and 1 never thought the Health Division was the
proper place to do it. | felt the Cosmetology Board is the standing board that
should be the one authorized to regulate this area, because they inspect the
schools and the spas that offer the permanent makeup. Rather than creating
another board, we could see about having the Cosmstology Board require an
examination and then issue a license to those conducting permanent makeup. It
already licenses schools that offer this training, so that would be simpler,

Chairwoman Buckley:

It was my understanding that in the amendment behind Tab E (Exhibit J}, that
the Board was going away. Instead, this approach was being suggested in its
place. It would define permanent cosmetics, and it would say that no one can
practice it without being certified by the national organization.

Assemblywoman Giunchigliani:

| have a discomfort with mandating that they join a group. | think the
Cosmetology Board is capable of licensing permanent makeup application,
because they already license the schools and spas. | think this got over thought.

Chris Cook, Field Inspector I, Nevada State Board of Cosmetology:

The Board of Cosmetology does not license permanent makeup and is currently
held by the county health departments and licensed through the cities. We do
have one school in Las Vegas that does have an add-on of a permanent makeup
school, but that is not regulated under us, We don’t have anything to do with it.
We have a statute that specifically states that cosmetologists cannot implant
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permanent pigment. This is a tattoo issue, not a cosmetic issue. The Board of
Cosmetology has no interest in regulating permanent cosmetics.

Chairwoman Buckley:

Assemblywoman Weber, | think the discussion has been that folks feel that
there is a need for some sort of quality control. There just seems to be a sense
of how to accomplish that. There is some concern about whether you have to
be certified by a national organization if that is the best way to ensure quality
control,

Assemblywoman Valerie Weber, Assembly District No. 5, Clark County:

It is a fascinating topic for our state since it involves a growing area. | haven't
seen a mock-up of the amendment as it was sent forward, but | believe that by
definition if someone calls themselves a permanent cosmetic technician, there
should be some sort of certification behind that, or barrier to entry.

Chairwoman Buckley:

Thay put in paragraph 2 of the amendment, “A person shall not practice
permanent cosmetics without being certified by the Society of Permanent
Cosmetic Professionals, its successor organization, or squivalent recognized
national certifying organization, ”

Assemblywoman Weber:
| believe those are the two national organizations that do this certification. By
way of their certification, that includes different levels of hours of training.

Assemblywoman Gansert:

is that certification required to practice this type of tattooing by everyone? Do
they have to already have this type of certification to be licensed? If you were
to open a practice at all, do you have to go through some sort of certification,
and is this the one everybody uses?

Assermnblyworman Weber:

At this time, there is nothing reguired by the State. There may be some county
ordinance that states that there should be a sanitation exam. That is in Clark
County right now, but there is no standardization in the state of Nevada.

Assemblywoman Gansert;
So this is a certification; it is not an organization that they join. It is a certifying
entity.
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Assemblywoman Weber:
The certification does come through the national organizations, which would be
the American Association of Micropigmentation or the Society for Permanent
Cosmetics Professionals,

Chairwoman Buckley;

| am sensing that the Committee members really want to do somsthing in this
area, but just aren’t sure if this is the right approach. | will pull it from the work
session unless people feel like we are ready, and give you the opportunity to
talk to Committee members individually about their concerns.

Assemblyman Hettrick:

What was just said interested me. | mentioned earlier that my wife had had a
permanent cosmetic procedure done. Clark County has some requirements but |
don't know what the other counties have. Clearly my wife is not residing in
Ctark County, so | don't know what the requirement was for the person that
performed this procedure. | don’t know how they are checked in any way to
make sure they are up to code on health and sanitation. Tattooing, if done
improperly, can cause serious infections that are very hard to stop. | think one
of the things that might help us would be to find out how the various counties
regulate this, to see that every county has something on its books to regulate it
in any fashion. | will bet that there are counties in this state that have no
regulation with regard to permanent cosmetics. Maybe this step is farther than
we want to go, but maybe it is a step that needs to be done simply for the
training and the hours until something else comes along and we could change it.
| still believe something should be done.

Assemblywoman Weber:

That is a very interesting point, because in doing research, we found that some
states will not allow tattooing within one inch of the eye. There is a possible
dangerous outcome of using a tattooing needie around the eye.

Chairwoman Buckley:
We will give you until Friday; | think it is on life support.

As for the work session bills, | don’t know where we are going to go with taxes
this session in terms of eliminating some of them. | don’t know what is going to
happen on the live entertainment tax, | don’t have a good sense of it. On one
hand, it has caused a lot of problems. On the other hand, we are getting
$6 million from strip clubs. | would hate to give that back to them. There are a
lot of problems. | don't have any problems with A.B. b54 in exempting the
Star Trek show. | don’t have any problems tinkering with it. We might end up
radically changing it altogether, We have a number of Senate bills on the issue
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coming over. I am not sure, if we pass the brothel issue, if we end up
eliminating it altogether or restructuring it to be clearer, or if it is even worth
bringing it up for discussion.

[Chairwoman Buckley, continued.] We may want to go ahead and move
A.B. 554 and make the corrections with regard to Section 1, the domestic
service, bringing that down to ths other chapters, adding the amendment
offered by Scott Scherer, adding the convention amandment, but clarifying that
its value is under $100 so that Taxation is satisfied, clarifying the language on
the real estate transier tax to be more similar to the 5.B, language. We still then
weould have to address the bank location fee in the rural areas, which is
something we could do now and maybe process A.B, 554,

Assemblyman Perkins:

A.B, 554 needs to continue to exist as a vehicle; it will certainly end up in Ways
and Means anyway, no matter what the form of the biil is. Now, the danger
there is that this Commitiee loses the policy discussion end of it. 1t could be in
its current form, with or without recommendation, or it could be changed and it
will receive an exemption as it gets re-referred to Ways and Means. It still needs
to exist as a vehicle, because | think there is plenty of appetite on this
Committee to make some changes, reductions, and fix the ineqguities that we
have found thus far. In any event, the bill has to be put forward in some
fashion.

Chairwoman Buckley:

The big change that we would consider concerns the rural bank issue. Does
anyone have any suggestions for what the bill would look like if we did approve
the bill and move it on to Ways and Means?

Assemblyman Perkins:

As | lock at that bank issue, | am not so sure that concern is narrowly tailored
to rural communities. You can have a community bank in an urban area as well,
Certainly, with the population thresholds, we would not be able to accomplish
that as the bill is currently written. It would be my preference for us to capturse
some relief for community banks as a whole.

Assemblyman Arberry:
Quite a few members of this Committee are also on Ways and Means, so they
would bring that flavor. That would be helpful.
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Chairwoman Buckley:

That would certainly be an option; we could leave in community banks and ask
Ways and Means to further examine the rural queastion to see whether we can
just do some broader exemptions there.

Assemblywoman Giunchigliani:

) was glad to see this language in here. Tom Callins [former Assemblyman,
District No. 1, Clark County] had requested the bill to try to deal with assisting.
In looking at my notes, there is no single definition of a community bank;
however, most analysts think of the bank as having two key characteristics —
they are small in size and do most of their business in the community in which
they are located. They agree to define community banks as a bank owned by an
organization with lass than $1 billion in total banking assets. That is probably
where that language came from. | just want to make sure that if we were to
move this, the larger banks don‘t think that they can try to eliminate the bank
branch because they asked for that tax. | think we unintentionally affected
some of the smaller banks that really do help in those communities. We have to
be sensitive to that part of it, If you want a motion to move ne recommendation
to Ways and Means, we would have to make sure that they know that it is
coming, because if it is not exempted by Friday, it stili dies.

Chairwoman Buckley;

t would probably take a motion to amend and re-refer with the Alan Glover
amendment on the real estate transfer tax, the Star Trek amendment, the
amendments mentioned by Ms. Vilardo, and carry down the section with the
$100 convention, because that would save Ways and Means some time from
having to hear the smaller conforming issues.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN GIUNCHIGLIANI MOVED TO AMEND AND
RE-REFER ASSEMBLY _ BILL 554 WITH THE STATED
AMENDMENTS.

ASSEMBLYMAN SEALE SECONDED THE MOTION.
THE MOTICN CARRIED. (Assemblywoman McClain was not

present for the vote.}

Chairwoman Buckley:
Let’s open the discussion on the brothel tax bill. [Assembly Bill 317.]
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Assemblywoman Giunchigliani:

$1.6 million is $1.6 million that goes into the coffers. if we change the live
entertainment tax, then we would have to stay inline with whatever we do with
the brothsls, because you can’t treat them differently. That was the problem we
had last session with trying to capture the strip clubs as well. If they are
offering to pay, | don’t understand why we don’t want to accept it. | don’t have
any problems with it.

Chairwoman Buckley:

This is such a weighty issue. | am going to let all of the members think about it
and let me know what your preferences are in moving the bill. Seeing no other
business to come before the Committee, we are adjourned [at 3:23 p.m.].

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

James 8. Cassimus
Transcribing Attaché

APPROVED BY:

Assemblywoman Barbara Buckley, Chairwoman

DATE:
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EXHIBITS

Committee Name: Committee on Commerce and Labor

Date: April 13, 2005

Time of Meeting: 12:00 p.m.

Bill | Exhibit | Witness / Agency Description
A Agenda
A.B. B Assemblywoman Sheila Leslie Proposed Amendment
317
245 C Ray Bacon, Nevada Manufacturers | Letter to Committee
Association
338 b Diane Thornton, Research Division | Work Session Document
338 E Biane Thornton, Research Division | Proposed Amendment
338 F Diane Thornton, Research Division | Proposed Amendment
338 G Diane Thornton, Research Division | Proposed Amendment
338 H Diane Thornton, Research Division { Proposed Amendment
360 | Diane Thornton, Research Division | Wark Session Document
360 J Diane Thornton, Research Division | Proposed Amendment
384 K Diane Thornton, Research Division | Work Session Document
384 L Diane Thornton, Research Division | Mock-Up proposed
amendment to A.B. 384
437 M Diane Thornton, Research Division | Work Session Document
437 N Diane Thornton, Research Division | Proposed Amendments
464 0 Diane Thornton, Research Division | Work Session Dogument
464 P Diane Thornton, Research Division | Proposed Amendments
4864 a Diane Thornton, Research Division | Proposed Amendments
464 R Diane Thornton, Research Division | Proposed Amendments
Part |l
bbb S Diane Thorton, Research Division | Work Session Document
55b T Diane Thornton, Research Division | Proposed Amendment
565 U Diane Thornton, Research Division | Proposed Amendment
555 A" Diane Thornton, Research Division | letter with  proposed
amendment
320 W Christina Dugan, Las Vegas |Letter in support of A.B.
Chamber of Commerce 320
387 X Dino DiCianno, Department of |Fiscal note
Taxation
387 Y Larry Hurst, National Association ; Health Savings Account

of Health Underwriters

information
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387 Z Nancy Ford, Nevada State Welfare
Division

Written testimony

554 AA Scott Scherer, Paramount Parks

Proposed Amendment

kb4 BB Alan Glover, Carson City Clerk-
Recorder

Proposed Amendment

19 cC Diane Thornton, Research Division

Work Session Document
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF NEVADA

& & &

DEJA VU SHOWGIRLS OF LAS VEGAS, L.L.C. )
d/b/a DEJA VU SHOWGIRLS; LITTLE )
DARLINGS OF LAS VEGAS, L.L.C. d/b/a )
LITTLE DARLINGS; K-KEL, INC. d/b/a )
SPEARMINT RHINO GENTLEMAN'S CLUB; )
OLUMPUS GARDEN, INC, d/b/a OLYMPIC )
GARDEN; SHAC, L.L.C. d/b/a SAPPHIRE; ]
THE POWER COMPANY, INC,, d/b/a CRAZY )
HORSE TOO GENTLEMEN'S CLUB; )
D. WESTWOOD, INC. d/b/a TREASURES,; ) 2:06-cv-0480-RLH-RJJ
and D.I. FOOD AND BEVERAGE OF )
LAS VEGAS, L.L.C,, d/b/a SCORES, %

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

Plaintiff(s}),

ORDER
(Motion to Dismiss—#12)

V8.

NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION,
NEVADA TAX COMMISSION and NEVADA
STATE BOARD OF EXAMINERS,

Defendant(s).

Before the Court is Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss Amended Complaint (#12,
filed May 10, 2006). Plaintiffs> Opposition (#16) was filed June 5, 2006. Defendants’ Reply
(#17) was filed June 14, 2006,

The Motion will be granted.

BACKGROUND
This suit arises from a statute enacted by the Nevada State legislature, 207 Special

Session, in 2003, which, infer alia, replaced the casino entertainment tax with a tax on all live
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entertainment, The provisions of the live entertainment tax were placed in Chapter 368A of the
Nevada Revised Statutes (“NRS”) and were further amended by the Nevada State Legislature in
20035,

Plaintiffs, who operate establishments at which “live performance dance entertain-
ment” is provided, contend that the Live Entertainment Tax violates their rights under the First and
Foutteenth Amendments of the United States Constitution as a restraint on speech and a violation
of substantive due process, They seek declaratory relief concerning the constitutionality of the tax
and their non-obligation to pay it, and seek an injunction against its enforcement and seek damages
under 42 U.8.C. §1983, including a refund of taxes paid.

Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss challenges this Court’s jurisdiction, invoking 28
U.S.C. §1341 (the “Tax Injunction Act” or “TIA”), which states that “[t]he district courts shall not
enjoin, suspend or restrain the assessment, levy or collection of any tax under State law where a
plain, speedy and efficient remedy may be had in the courts of such State.” Defendants also
contend, based upon the pleadings and requirements of the Tax Injunction Act, that Plaintiffs have
failed to state a claim upon which relief can be granted. See Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(1) and (6).

STANDARD OF REVIEW

Rule 8 (Fed. R. Civ. P.) requires every complaint to contain “a short and plain
statement of the grounds upon which the court’s jurisdiction depends.” Local Rule LR 8-1
requires that, “The first allegation of any complaint . . . shall state the statutory or other basis of
claimed federal jurisdiction and the facts in support thereof. Federal courts are coutts of limited
Jurisdiction. They have no inherent or general subject matter jurisdiction. They can adjudicate

only those cases which the Constitution and Congress authorize. These are usually only those

i
The Live Entertainment Tax applies to certain gaming and non-gaming facilities. NRS
368A.060 AND 368A200, The Department of Taxation administers the tax with respect to entities
without gaming licenses. The Gaming Commission administers the tax with regard to gaming
licensees.
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which involve a federal question, the United States is a party or where there is diversity of
citizenship and certain criteria are met. Kokkonen v. Guardian Life Ins. Co., 511 U.8. 375 (1994).
The Plaintiffs bear the burden of proof by a preponderance of evidence that federal subject-matter
jurisdiction exists. Mortensen v. First Federal Sav. and Loan Ass'n, 549 F.2d 884, 891 (3" Cir,
1977). |

Rule 12(b)(6) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure provides that a court may
dismiss a complaint for “failure to state a claim upon which relief can be granted.” “[A} complaint
should not be dismissed for failure to state a claim unless it appears beyond doubt that the plaintiff
can prove no set of facts in support of his claim which would entitle him to relief.” Conley v,
Gibson, 355 1.8, 41, 45-46 (1957); see also Yamaguchi v. US. Dept, of the Air Force, 109 F.3d
1475, 1481 (Sth Cir. 1997). All factual allegations set forth in the complaint “are taken as true and
construed in the light most favorable to [plaintiffs.” Epstein v. Washington Energy Ce., 83 F.3d
1136, 1140 (9th Cir. 1999). Dismissal is appropriate “only if it is clear that no relief could be
granted under any set of facts that could be proven consistent with the allegations.” Hishorn v.
King & Spalding, 467 U.S. 69, 73 (1984); see also McGlinchy v. Shell Chem. Cp., 845 F.2d 802,
810 (9th Cir. 1988).

DISCUSSION

The United States Supreme Court has held, in a fairly recent decision, that the Tax
Injunction Act “shields state tax collections from federal-court restraints,” and “was designed
expressly to restrict the jurisdiction of the district courts of the United States over suits relating to
the collection of State taxes.” Hibbs v. Winn, 542 U.8. 88, 104 (2004).

Drawing a clear distinction between tax credits (over which the district courts have
jurisdiction) and actions seeking to avoid payment of taxes or to otherwise interfere with stafe tax
collection, Hibbs took great pains to reaffirm a long line of its decisions which denied jurisdiction
to 1.5, district courts in cases where the purpose of the suit was to avoid the payment of taxes—

usually on constitutional grounds—or seek a refund for taxes already paid. See e.g., Rosewell v.

RA0055




o e W

ot

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
2
23
24
25
26

Case 2:06-cv-00480-RLH-RJJ Document 21 Filed 07/28/06 Page 4of7

LaSalle National Bank, 451 U.S, 1011 (1981) (two-year delay of tax refund was still a plain,
speedy and efficient remedy to preclude federal district court jurisdiction under Tax Injunction
Act);, Fair Assessment in real Estate Association, Inc. V. McNﬁry, 454 1.8, 100 {1981) (comity
and TIA barred taxpayers’ suit for damages under §1983); California v. Grace Brethren Church,
457 U.8. 393 (1982) (T1A prohibits federal district court from enjoining or declaring unconstitu-
tional state tax laws where plain, speedy and efficient remedy available); National Private Truck
Council, Inc. v. Oklahoma Tax Comm’n, 515 U.S. 582 (1995) (district court cannot enjoin,
suspend or restrain the assessment or collection of taxes under State law, where plain, speedy and
efficient remedy may be had in State courts).

The Ninth Circuit likewise has held that the Tax Injunction Act barred federal court
consideration of 2 complaint involving the constitutionality of California Proposition 13. Marvin
F. Poer and Company, v. Counties of Alameda, 725 F.2d 1234 (1984). In that case, the Circuit
Court stated that, “Federal courts have generally dismissed cases in which plaintiffs have sought
both injunctive or declaratory relief and a refund or damages.” Citing Blana; v. McHann, 463 F.2d
21 (5th Cir, 1972, cert. denied, 410 U.S. 966); City of Burbank v. State of Nevada, 548 F.2d 708
(9™ Cir. 1981); and Dillon v. State of Moniana, 634 F.2d 463 (9" Cir, 1980).

The Hibbs Court went to significant lengths to explain that it responds to State
governments’ need to assess and collect taxes as expeditiously as possible with a minimum of
preenforcement judicial interference and the legal right that the disputed taxes be determined in a
suit for refund. 542 U.S. at 103. The Court also noted that two of the purposes of the Act was to
eliminate disparities between large out-of-state corporations and in-state taxpayers in what their
remedies should be; and, to stop taxpayers, with the aid of a federal injunction, from withholding
large sums thereby disrupting state government finances. Id. at 104, The Tax Injunction Act was
“shaped by state and federal provisions barring anticipatory actions by taxpayers to stop the tax
collector from initiating collection proceedings,” training “its attention on taxpayers who sought to

avoid paying their tax bill by pursuing a challenge routc other than the one specified by the taxing
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authority.” Id. at 104-105. The Court noted that ““federal-court relief would have operated to
reduce the flow of state tax revenue,” and acknowledged that “the principal purpose of the TIA
was to ‘limit drastically’ federal-court interference with “the collection of [state] taxes.” Id. at
105-106.

Plaintiffs’ Opposition attempts to argue that First Amendments rights enjoy a
special protection from improper taxation, fee assessment or licensing requirements. They cite
cases in support of this argument, including Supreme Court cases, This Court does not question
the decisions in those cases, but they are inapposite {o the jurisdictional issue here, In their lead-
off case, they cite Fair Assessment in real Estate Ass'n, Inc. v. McNary, which the Hibbs case cites
as noted above. However, this case is contrary to Plaintiffs® argument. In McNary, the dismissal
on jurisdictional grounds was affirmed.

The other cases cited either do not address taxation collection issues, or they
involve cases where the proper jurisdictional route was taken, i.e., they were pursued through State
courts, up through State Supreme Courts and then to the Supreme Court of the United States.
Those cases adopted the procedure mandated by the Tax Injunction Act!

Another argument attempted by Plaintiffs is that there is no remedy in the State
courts. This argument is based upon NRS 368A.280(1), which states:

No injunction, writ of mandate or other legal or equitable process may issuc in any
suit, action or proceeding in any court against this state or against any officer of this
State to prevent or enjoin the collection under this chapter of the tax imposed by
this chapter or any amount of tax, penalty or interest required to be collected.

First, it should be noted that the foregoing statute does not preclude a taxpayer from
pursuing the established procedures for contesting a tax or secking a refund.

Second, the language of the statute does not, as Plaintiffs suggest, preclude judicial
recourse in the State court. It merely prevents a preemptive strike, that is an action to enjoin the
collection of the taxes. It does not prevent a judicial challenge either to the collection of the tax or

the constitutionality of the statute authorizing the tax. Indeed, the Nevada Supreme Court, in a

S 5 O S
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case involving a statute which precluded any suit whatever unless an administrative claim had
been filed, held that notwithstanding the statute, the California corporation could bring the suit to
challenge the tax. State v. Scotsman Mfy. Co. Inc., 109 Nev, 252, 849 ).2d 317 (1993). This
decision strongly suggests that declaratory relief is available in State court notwithstanding NRS
368A.280(1).

At any rate, Plaintiffs have not alleged in their complaint, with specific facts, that
there exists no “plain,” speedy or efficient remedy available under the laws or through the courts of
the State of Nevada. Accordingly, Plaintiffs have neither established jurisdiction nor stated a
claim upon which relief can be granted by this Court. This case clearly is a case designed fo enjoin
or restrain the assessment or collection of a tax under a State law and further seeks damages,
including a refund of taxes. It clearly falls within the purpose of the Tax Injunction Act and
removes this Court’s jurisdiction,

Defendants also argue that they are not “persons” for the purposes of Section 1983
and therefore no claim under that section can lic against them. Although the Court need not
address this argument, it notes that the assertion is comrect.

Defendants also argue that they are immune from this suit pursuant to the provi-
sions of the Eleventh Amendment of the Constitution. In this case the State of Nevada has not
waived its Eleventh Antendment Immunity, nor is such a waiver alleged or pled. Nor do Plaintiffs
allege that Congress has abrogated the State’s Eleventh Amendment immunity under these
circumstances. This is clearly a suit against the State of Nevada and its agencies.

For all the foregoing reasons, the Court finds that Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss

has merit and must be granted.
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IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that Motion to Dismiss Amended Complaint

o LS

(#12) is GRANTED.
Dated: July 25, 2006.

ROGER L. HUNT
Unite{l States District Judge
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NOW COMES Plaintiffs, Deja Vu Showgirls of Las Vegas, L.L.C., d/b/a Deja Vu

Showgiris, Little Darlings of Las Vegas, L.L.C., d/b/a Little Darlings, K-Kel, Inc., d/b/a
Spearmint Rhino Gentlemen's Club, Olympus Garden, Inc., d/b/a Olympic Garden, SHAC,
LL.C, d/bfa Sapphire, The Power Company, Inc., d/b/a Crazy Horse Too Gentlemen's Club, D,
II Westwood, Inc., d/bfa Treasures, and D.I. Food & Beverage of Las Vegas, LLC, d/b/a Scores
(collectively referred to herein as the “Plaintiffs”), by and through their atlorneys, and state for
their complaint against Defendants Nevada Department of Taxation, Nevada Tax Commission,
Nevada State Board of Examiners, and Michelle Jacobs in her official capacity only (collectively

referred to herein as the “Defendants™), as follows:

INTRODUCTION
This is a civil action wherein Plaintiffs pray for a declaratory judgment, damages, attorney
fees and costs, as well as both a preliminary and permanent injunction to restrain and enjoin
the Defendants, as well as their agents, employees and representatives, from acting under
color of state law to deprive the Plaintiffs of their rights, privileges and immunities secured
to them by the Constitution of the State of Nevada and the Constitution of the United States.
Sbeciﬁcally, Plaintiffs seek to have this Court declare as unconstitutional on its face, and
to enjoin, all aspects of the Nevada Tax on Live Entertainment (referred to herein as the
“Live Entertainment Tax,” or simply the “Tax”) as established by Title 32, Chapter 368A,
of the Nevada Revised Statutes (“Chapter 368A™), as being an impermissible tax on
constitutionally protected expression. A copy of that statute is attached hereto as Ex. “A)”

and is incorporated herein by reference.

JURISDICTION AND YENUE

This Court has jurisdiction and power to grant the injunctive relief reéuested pursuant to
Rule 65 of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure and N.R.S. § 33.010, and jurisdiction and
authority to grant the declaratory judgment prayed for here pursuant to Rule 57 ofthe Nevada
Rules of Civil Procedure and N.R.S. 33.040.

The federal statutory law which further authorizes the institution of this suit is 42 U.S.C.
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§ 1983, which provides, in part:

“Every person who, under color of any statute, ordinance, regulation, custom

or usage, of any State or Territory . . . subjects, or causes to be subjected, any

citizen of the United States or other person within the jurisdiction thereof to

the deprivation of any rights, privileges or immunities secured by the

Constitution and laws, shall be liable to the party injured in an action at law,

suit in equity, or other proper proceeding for redress ., .
Authorization for the request of attorney’s fees and costs is conferred by 42 U.8.C. § 1988,
This suit is authorized by law to redress deprivations under color of state law of rights,
privileges, and immunities secured by Article I, §§ 9 and 10, of the Nevada Constitution, as
well as the First and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution, and for
declaratory and injunctive relief.
Venue resides in this Court and is proper and appropriate as the various acts complained of
occurred, and the Defendants are located, within Clark County in the State of Nevada.

PARTIES

Plaintiffs incorporate herein by reference cach and every paragraph above as though fully set
forth herein.
Plaintiff, Deja Vu Showgirls of Las Vegas, L.L.C., d/bfa Defa Vi Showgirls (“Deja Vu™), is
a Limited Liability Company duly organized under the Jaws of the State of Nevada, and is
authorized and qualified to do business in the State of Nevada.
Plaintiff, Little Darlings of Las Vegas, L.L.C., d/b/a Little Darlings (“Little Darlings"), is
& Limited Liability Company duly organized under the laws of the State of Nevada, and is
authorized and qualified to do business in the State of Nevada.
Plaintiff, K-Kel, Inc., d/bfa Spearmint Rhino Genilemen’s Club (“Spearmint Rhino®) is a
Corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Nevada, and is authorized and
qualified to do business in the State of Nevada.
Plaintiff, Olympus Garden, Inc., dbfa Olympic Garden (“Olympic™)is a Corporation duly

organized under the laws of the State of Nevada, and is authorized and qualified to do

businegs in the State of Nevada,
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Plaintiff, SHAC, L.L.C,, d/b/a Sapphire (“Sapphire”) is & Limited Liability Company duly
organized under the laws of the State of Nevada, and is authorized and qualified to do
business in the State of Nevada.
Plaintiff, ‘The Power Company, Inc., db/a Crazy Horse Too Gentlemen's Club (*Crazy
Horse") is a Corporation duly organized under the law:vs of the State of Nevada, and is
authorized and qﬁaliﬁed to do business in the State of Nevada.
Plaintiff, D. Westwood, Inc., d/b/a Treasures (“Treasures”) is a Corporation duly organized
under the laws of the State of Nevada, and is authorized and qualified to do business in the
State of Nevada,
Plaintiff, D.I. Food & Beverage of Las Vegas, LLC, d/b/a Scores (“Scores”) is a Corporation
duly organized under the laws of the State of Nevada, and is authorized and qualified to do
business in the State of Nevada.
None of the Plaintiffs operate their facilities as licensed gaming establishments under the
laws of the State of Nevada.
Defendant, Nevada Department of Taxation (hersinafter sometimes referred to simply as the
“Department”) is a governmental entity created under the laws of the State of Nevada, which
administers and enforces the statutory provisions challenged herein, and collects the Live
Entertainment Tax, for all non-gaming licensed taxpayets.
Defendant, Nevada Tax Commission (hereinafter sometimes referred to simply as the
“Commission™) is a governmental entity created under the laws of the State of Nevada,
which administers and enforces some of the statutory provisions challenged herein, and is
authorized to consider and rule upon, among other things, appeals of claims under
Chapter 368A.
Defendant, Nevada State Board of Examiners (hereinafter sometimes referred to simply as
the “Board of Examiners”) is a governmental entity created under the laws of the State of
Nevada, and consists of the governor, the secretary of state, and the attorney general.

Pursuant to N.R.S. § 368A.250, the Board of Examinets is authorized to approve, among
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22,

23,

24,
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26.

other things, refunds with regard to any erroncously or illegally collected or computed tax
under Chapter J68A.
Defendant, Michelle Jacobs, who is named in this lawsuit in her official capacity only, is an
employee of the Nevada Department of Taxation, and is responsible for the administration
of Chapter 368A.

STATEMENT OF FACTS
Plaintiffs incorporate herein by reference each and every paragraph above as though fully set
forth herein.
On or about July 22, 2003, the State of Nevada enacted, pursuant to the adoption of
Chapter 368A, a Tax on Live Entertaiiment, which imposes, subject to numerous exceptions,
an excise tax on admission to any facility within the State of Nevada that provides defined
“live entertainment.”
Pursuant to N.R.S, § 368A.140, the Defendant Nevada Department of Taxation is obligated
to collect the tax imposed by Chapter 367A from taxpayers who/which are not licensed
gaming establishments, and is also obligated to adopt such regulations as are necessary to
carry out those functions.
Upon information and belief, one of the primary purposes for the enactment of Chapter 368A
was to impose an excise tax upon those establishments in the State of Nevada that provide
live so-called “adult” entertainment in the form of exotic dancing, “topless™ dancing, and
fully nude performance dance entertainment.
As originally enacted, the tax imposed by Chapter 368 A was not applicable, under the terms
of N.R.8. § 368A.200(5)(d), to live entertainment that is not provided at a licensed gaming
establishment if the facility in which the live enterfainment is provided had a maximum
occupancy of less than 300 persons.
On June 17, 2005, Chapter 368A was amended by Assembly Bill No, 554, which « - among
other things - - reduced the scope of the exception as contained in N.R.S. § 368A.200(5)(d)

from a maximum seating capacity limitation of 300 to 200. Upon information and belief, the

5
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31

purpose of the July 17, 2005, amendments to Chapter 368A, and in particular those to N, R.S,
§ 368A.200(5)(d), was to specifically extend the tax obligation as contained in Chapter 368A
to “adult” entertainment establishments which were not then subject to the Live
Entertainment Tax, including a number of the Plaintiffs in this action.

Deja Vu operates a commercial establishment at 3247 Industrial Road, Las Vegas, Nevada,
89109, whereupon live performance dance entertainment is presented to the consenting adult
public. The Defendants have taken the position that Deja Vu is subject to Chapter 368A, as
amended, and have required Deja ¥u to pay the Live Entertainment Tax as mandated therein.
Little Darlings operates a commercial establishment at 1514 Westérn Avenue, Las Vegas,
Nevada, 89102, whercupon live performance dance entertainment is presented to the
consenting adult public. The Defendants have taken the position that Little Darlings is
subject to Chapter 3684, as amended, and have required Little Darlings to pay the Live
Entertainment Tax as mandated therein.

Spearmint Rhino operates a commercial establishment at 3344 8. Highland Avenue, Lag
Vegas, Nevada, 89109, whereupon live performance dance entertainment is presented to the
consenting adult public. The Defendants have taken the position that Spearmint Rhino is
subject to Chapter 368A, as amended, and have required Spearmint Rhino to pay the Live
Entertainment Tax as mandated therein.

Olympic Garden operates a commercial establishment at 1531 S. Las Vegas Boulevard, Las
Vegas, Nevada, 89104, whereupon live performance dance entertainment is presented to the
consenting adult public. The Defendants have taken the position that Olympic Garden is
subject to Chapter 3684, as amended, and have required Olyimpic Garden to pay the Live
Entertainment Tax as mandated therein.

Sapphire operates a commercial establishment at 3025 Industrial Road, Las Vegas, Nevada,
89109, whereupon live performance dance entertainment is presented to the consenting adult
public. The Defendants have taken the position that Sapphire is subject to Chapter 368A,

as amended, and have required Sapphire to pay the Live Entertainment Tax as mandated

)
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Crazy Horse operates a commercial establishment at 2476 Indusirial Road, Las Vegas,
Nevada, 89102, whereupon live performance dance entertainment is presented to the
consenting adult public. The Defendants have taken the position that Crazy Horse is subject
to Chapter 368A, as amended, and have required Crazy Horse to pay the Live Entettainment
Tax as mandated therein.

Treasures operates a commercial establishment at 2801 Westwood, Las Vegas, Nevada,
89109, whereupon live performance dance entertainment is presented to the consenting adult
public. The Drefendants have taken the position that Treasures is subject to Chapter 3684,
as amended, and have required Treasures to pay the Live Entertainment Tax as mandated
therein,

Scores operates a commercial establishment at 3355 South Procyon Avenue, Las Vepgas,
Nevada, 89102, whereupon live performance dance entertainment is presented to the
consenting adult public. The Defendants ha‘ve taken the position that Scores is subject to
Chapter 368A, as amended, and have required Scores to pay the Live Entertainment Tax as
mandated therein.

All of the facilities operated by the Plaintiffs have maximum occupancies of less than 7,500
persons.

The Plaintiffs all present upon their business premises some form of live “exotic”
performance dance entertainment. Some of the Plaintiffs present live clothed and “topless™
female performance dance entertainment, and others of the Plaintiffs present live clothed,
“topless” and fully nude female performance dance entertainment; all of which is non-
obscene. The non-obscene performance dance entertainment presented on the establishments
operated by the Plaintiffs constitates speech and expression, as well as a form of assembly,
protected by not only Article 1, §§ 9 and 10, of the Nevada Constitution, but the First and
Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution, as well.

The Defendants take the position that pursuant to the definitions set forth in Chapter 368A,
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Plaintiffs are obligated to pay the Live Entertainment Tax since their establishments fall
within the definition of “live entertainment” found in N.R.S. § 368A.090, and since they are
not otherwise exempted from having to pay that tax.

Plaintiffs contend that the Live Entertainment Tax as mandated by Chapter 368A is both
illegal and unconstitutional, and for those reasons they do not desire to pay those taxes.
Nevertheless, under threat of criminal prosecution and/or the imposition of fines and other
penalties against them, Plaintiffs have all, beginning at various times, paid the Live
Entertainment Tax mandated by Chapter 368A.

Plaintiffs have filed this action in order to protect their fundamental constitutional rights
from infringement by the enforcement of Chapter 368A, which they contend is
unconstitutional on its face as it imposes a tax directly on “live entertainment;” an activity
which is protected by Article [, §§ 9 and 10 of the Nevada Constitution as well as the First
and Fourteenth to the United States Constitution. Chapter 368A is therefore a direct tax on
“First Amendment” freedoms, and in particular on live exotic performance dance
entertainment.

Plaintiffs have suffered, and will continue to suffer, itreparable harm due to the enforcement
of Chapter 368A in that their constitutional rights have been infringed upon, as well as their
ability to provide constitutionally protected entertainment,

EXCERPTS OF THE TAX ON LIVE ENTERTAINMENT STATUTE

Plaintiffs incorporate herein by reference each and every paragraph above as though fully set

forth herein.

Chapter 368 A states, at N.R.S, § 368A.200(1), that “[¢]xcept as otherwise provided in this
section, there is hereby imposed an excise tax on admission to any facility in this State where
live entertainment is provided.” If the live entertainment is provided at a facility with a
maximum occupancy of less than 7,500, the rate of tax is 10% of the adinission charge to the
facility plus 10% of any amounts paid for food, refreshments and merchandise purchased at

the facility. Ifthe live entertainment is provided at a facility with a maximum occupancy of
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at least 7,500, the rate of the tax is 5% of the admission charged to the facility.
Chapter 368A defines an “[a]dmission charge” in N.R.S. § 368A.020 as:

[TThe total amount, expressed in terms of money, of consideration paid for
the right or privilege to have access to a facility where live entertainment is
provided. The term includes, without limitation, an entertainment fee, a cover
charge, a table reservation fee, or a required minimum purchase of food,
refreshments or merchandise.

Chapter 368A defines a “facility” in N.R.S. § 368A.060 as:

“(a) Any area or premises where live entertainment is provided and for which

consideration is collected for the right or privilege of entering that area or

those premises if the live entertainment is provided at:
(1) An establishment that is not a licensed gaming establishment; or
(2) A licensed gaming establishment that is licensed for less than 51
slot machines, less than six games, or any combination of slot
machines and games within those respective limits.

{b) Any arca or premises where live entertainment is provided if the Jive
entertainment is provided at any other licensed gaming establishment,”

“[L]ive entertainment™ Is defined in § 368A.090 as:
“I[Alny activity provided for pleasure, enjoyment, recreation, relaxation,
diversion or other similar pupose by a person or persons who are physically
present when providing that activity to a patron or group of patrons who are
physically present.”
This definition includes, among other activities, “[dlancing performed by one or more
professional or amateur dancers.”
Chapter 368A states, at N.R.S. § 368A.142(2), that the Department shall collect the Live
Entertainment Tax from non-gaming licensed taxpayers, such as is the case of the Plaintiffs
here, and is empowered to “adopt such regulations are necessary to catry out” that collection.
Pursuant to N.R.8. § 368A.200(5), the tax imposed by Chapter 368 is not applicable to a
variety of circumstances. Some of the exemptions include live entertainment that the State
is prohibited from taxing under the Constitution, laws or treaties of the United States or
Nevada Constitution; live entertainment that is not provided at a licensed gaming
establishment if the facility has a maximum seating capacity of less than 200; live

entertainment that is provided at a licensed gatning establishment that is licensed for less

than 51 siot machines, less than six games, or any combination of slot machines and games
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within those limits, if the facility has a maximum seating capacity of less than 200;
metrchandise sokd outside the facility in which the live entertainment is provided, unless the
purchase of the merchandise entitles the purchaser to admission to the enteriainment; and
music performed by musicians who move constantly through the audience if no other form
of live entertainment is afforded to the patrons.
Overpayments and refunds of the Live Entertainment Tax are addressed in N.R.S.
§ 368A.250, which provides that if the Department determines that any tax has been
“erroncously or illegally collected or computed,” the Department must record the fact and
certify the amount owed and from whom it was collected to Defendant Board of Examiners.
If the amount is approved by the Board of Examiners, it is then credited on any amount that
is due from that person under Chapter 3684, with the balance refunded to that person.
Chapter 368A provides, at N.R.S. § 368A.280(1), that “[n]o injunction, writ of mandate or
other legal or equitable process may issue in any suit, action or proceeding in any court
against this state or against any officer of the State to prevent or enjoin the collection under
this chapter of the tax imposed by this chapter or any amount of tax, penalty or interest
required to be collected.” Accordingly, Plaintiffs have no ability to seek injunctive reliefin
state court against collection of the Live Entertainment Tax.
Chapter 368A provides, at N.R.S. § 368A.290(1), that the Nevada Tax Commission is
authorized to render a fina! decision upon claims for refunds under that chapter. Further, at
N.R.S. § 368A.300(2), Chapter 368A provides that a claim thereunder that is disallowed by
the Department may be appealed to the Nevada Tax Commission.

COUNT 1 - DECLARATORY RELIEF
Plaintiffs incorporate herein by reference each and every paragraph above as though fully set
forth herein.
Chapter 368A is unconstitutional on its face under Article I, §§ 9 and 10 of the Nevada
Constitution as well as the First and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States

Constitution, for numerous and various reasons, including, but riot limited to, the fact that:

10
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It effectuates an impermissible prior restraint on speech and expression;
It fails to further any important, substantial or compelling governmenta! interest;

[t permits restrictions on speech and expression that are greater than are essential to
further any asserted governmental interests;

It permits restrictions on speech and expression that are not the Jeast restrictive
means available;

It contains criteria that are both arbitrary and capricious and which are not supported
by any legislative record;

It contains numerous and various terms and phrases which are impetmissibly vague,
and ambiguous, and the applicable definitions as contained therein are impermissibly
and substantially overbroad judged in relation to their plainly legitimate sweep;

It imbues the Defendants with unbridled discretion;

It impermissibly singles out constitutionally protected businesses for certain
regulations;

It violates the substantive due process rights of the Plaintiffs and others;

Itviclates Plaintiffs’ equal protection rights in that it unconstitutionally discriminates
against expressive businesses based upon the content of speech, and it further creates
and permits uneven treatment in the exercise of constitutionally protected rights in
the State of Nevada, and therefore permits differing treatment amongst individuals
who desire to engage in constitutionally protected speech;

It is an impermissible direct tax on constitutionally protected freedoms;

It impermissibly requires a person or business to pay for the right to exercise a right
guaranieed by the Nevada and United States Constitutions;

It was enacted upon an insufficient record and is not justified on any factual or legal
ground; and

1t violates the separation of powers doctring,

Because the Live Entertainment Tax is an impermissible and/or unconstitutional direct tax

upon expression protected by Article I, §§ 9 and 10 of the Nevada Constitution as well as

the First Amendment to the United States Constitution, Plaintiffs are not subject to payment

of the Live Entertainment Tax pursuant to the provisions of N.R.S. § 368A.200(5)(a).

This Court has the authority to declare the rights and other relations of the Plaintiffs and of

the Defendants, and should do so here.

Because of the questioned constitutionality of the Live Entertainment Tax as required by

11
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Chapter 368A, and because of the potential application of the exemption as contained in
N.R.S. § 368A.200(5)(a) in regard to the Live Entertainment Tax being applied to these
Plaintiffs, Plaintiffs are entitled to a declaration by this Court in regard to the
constitutionality of Chapter 368A as well as the applicability of the exemption as contained
in NLR.8, § 368A.200(5)(a).
56. For the reasons as set forth above, this Court should declare that the Live Entertainment Tax
as mandated by Chapter 368A 1s unconstitutional on its face. Also for the reasons as set
forth above, this Court should declare that Plaintiffs need not pay the Live Entertainment Tax
as required by Chapter 368 A both as a resuit of the constitutional violations as enumerated
above as well as the specific exemption as set forth in N.R.S. § 368A.200(5)(a). In addition,
this Court should declare that the Defendants have violated the constitutional rights of the
Plaintiffs by requiring them to have paid the Live Entertainment Tax in the past.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully request that this Honorable Court declare the Live
Entertainment Tax under Chapter 368 A unconstitutional on its face; that Plaintiffs need not pay the
Live Entertainment Tax as mandated by Chapter 368A both because it violates Article I, §§ 9 and
10 of the Nevada Constitution as well as the First Amendment to the United States Constitution, and
because Plaintiffs are exempt from paying the Live Entertainment Tax pursuant to the provisions of

N.R.S. § 368A.200(5)(a); and that the Defendants have violated the Plaintiffs’ constitutional rights

by having required them to have paid the Live Entertainment Tax in the past.

COUNT H - INJUNCTIVE RELIEF
57.  Plaintiffs incorporate herein by reference each and every paragraph above as though fully set
forth herein.
58.  Any action taken or to be taken by the Defendants to enforce any portion of Chapter 368A

against Plaintiffs has been taken and will be taken under color of faw, and has deprived and
will deprive Plaintiffs of their constitutional rights as set forth herein, and will cause them
irreparable harm for which compensatory damages are an inadequate remedy as a matter of

law.
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$9.  The threat of enforcement of Chapter 368A is both great and immediate. In addition,
Chapter 368A is both flagrantly and patently vielative of Plaintiffs’ constitutional rights.
There is no other remedy at law which would suffice to protect Plaintiffs” interests for the
reasons above numerated.

60.  The public interest weighs in favor of preventing deprivation of constitutional rights, and is
always served by enjoining an unconstitutional law.

61.  Plaintiffs have a substantial likelihood of success of prevailing on their constitutional claims
against Chaptet 3684, in that it is blatantly and patently unconstitutional. The Defendants
will suffer no harm by the entry of such an injunction, as there can be no legitimate
govermnmental interest in enforcing an unconstitutional law. In addition, the “balancing” of
the equities tips in favor of the Plaintiffs and in the entry of a preliminary injunction, due to
the paramount position of rights afforded under the First Amendment in comparison to the
lack of harm occasioned to the Defendants if such an injunction is granted.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully request that this Honorable Court enter both a

preliminary and permanent enjoining the Defendants, as well as their officers, agents, employees and

representatives, from enforcing Chapter 368 A against the Plaintiffs and/or from collecting the Live

Entertainment Tax against the Plaintiffs. Further, Plaintiffs respectfully request that this Honorable

Court enter a permanent injunction ordering Defendant Nevada Tax Commission to record the

payments of the Live Entertainment Tax made by the Plaintiffs and to certify thase amounts to the

H Defendant State Board of Examiners, and further ordering the Defendant State Board of Examiners

to approve and authorize the refund from the State Treasury of all such Live Entertainment Tax

payments that have been involuntarily made by the Plaintiffs under Chapter 3684, together with
interest as required by N.R.S. § 368A.310,
0 II - DAMAGE INST DEFENDANTS

62.  Plaintiffs incorporate herein by reference each and every paragraph above as though fully set
forth herein.

63.  All ofthe actions of Defendants, by and through their agents, employees and representatives,
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have been undertaken, and will be undertaken, in the course and scope of official duties and
under the color of state law.

As a direct and proximate cause of the application and/or enforcement of Chapter 368A by
Defendants against the Plaintiffs, the Plaintiffs have incurred and suffered significant and
substantial damages, and will in the future suffer significant and substantial damages,
including, but not limited to having to pay an illegal and/or unconstitutional tax; loss of
constitutional rights; lost business profits; and having to incur costs and attomey fees in
seeking protection of their constitutional rights asserted herein.

Any actions by Defendants 1o enforce and/or apply Chapter 368A against the Plaintiffs have
been and will be made under color of state law, and will unquestionably result in the
deprivation of Plaintiffs’ constitutional and civil rights as set forth above so as to render
Defendants liable for these losses pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §1983.

Pursuant to 421).8.C, §1983 and common law, Plaintiffs are entitled to an award of damages
for the injuries set forth above.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully request this Honorable Court to enter an award of

damages against Defendants and in favor of the Plaintiffs in amounts to which the Plaintiffs are

I found to be entitled,

COUNT IV - ATTORNEY FEES AND COSTS

Plaintiffs incorporate herein by reference each and every paragraph above as though fully set
forth herein.

Because Chapter 368A is violative of the Nevada Constitution and the United States
Constitution on its face, and because its application and/or enforcement has and will deprive
the Plaintiffs of their fundamental state and federal constitutional rights, Plaintiffs are
:antitlcd, as prevailing partics, to an award of costs and attorney fees incurred herein pursuant
to 42 U.8.C. § 1988,

WHEREFORE, FPlaintiffs respectfully request this Honorable Court to award costs and

attorney fees incurred herein pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988.
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PRAYE RELIEX
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray that this Honorable Court enter judgment against

Defendants, which would include:

A.

A declaration that the Live Enterfainment Tax under Chapter 368A is unconstitutional on its
face; that Plaintiffs need not pay the Live Entertainment Tax as mandated by Chapter 368A
both because it violates Article I, §§ 9 and 10 of the Nevada Constitution as well as the First
Amendment to the United States Constitution, and because Plaintiffs are exempt from paying
the Live Entertainment Tax pursuant to the provisions of N.R.S. § 368A.200(5)(a); and that
the Defendants have violated the Plaintiffs’ constitutional rights by having required them to
have paid the Live Entertainment Tax in the past;

A preliminary and permanent injunction restraining the Defendants, as well as their officers,
agents, employees and representatives, from enforcing Chapter 368A against the Plaintiffs
and/or from collecting the Live Entertainment Tax against the Plaintiffs;

A permanent injunction ordering Defendant Nevada Tax Commission to record the payments
of the Live Entertainment Tax made by the Plaintiffs and to certify those amounts to the
Defendant State Board of Examiners, and further ordering the Defendant State Board of
Examiners to approve and authorize the refund from the State Treasury of all such Live
Entertainment Tax payments that have been involuntarily made by the Plaintiffs under
Chapter 368A, together with interest as required by N.R.S, § 368A.310;

Entry of an award of damages against Defendants and in faver of the Plaintiffs in amounts
to which the Plaintiffs are found to be entitled;

Entry of an award of costs and attomey fees incurred herein pursuant to 42 U.8.C. § 1988,
and,

Entry of such other and further relief as the Court deers just and proper.
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Dated; December _/ 5,2006

Respectfully Submitted:

DO . TILE, Bar No. 1923
3960 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 850
Eighth Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
(702) 386-0066 - telephone

ife rid et - email

BRADLEY J. SHAFER*, MI Bar No. P36604
Shafer & Associates, P.C.

3800 Capital City Blvd., Suite 2

Lansing, Michigan 48906-2110

(517) 886-6560 - telephone

(517) 886-6565 ~ facsimile
shaferassociates(@acd.net - email

*Pending Admission Pro Hac Vice
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West's Navada Revised Statutes Annotated Currentness
Title 32, Ravenue and Taxation
< Chapter 368A, Tax'on Lwe Entartammant
Ganml Provmmns .

-Ag vied. tn ﬂns chaptcr, wnless the context otherwuss mqmrcs. ‘the wcmis and tcnns deﬁnad in w to iﬁ&AJ_Li.
mciusive, have the maanings ascribed fo them in thoaa seetions,

[FNI] See’ Htstanu] ant, SmmtoryNatcs below for cﬁ”nchvs data mfonnahuu.

11

: "'Aﬁmi‘ss"mn“bhaxgﬁ".n;ba;m'&m .:aﬁl.n'moﬁng, axpmssc-d in terms df-mbncg/_, 'qf.con's'idcmﬁon paid for.the fight-or privilege to
‘beve-eccass to afacility whert live entertainment 5 provided. The tarm’ inchides, without Timitation; en-entertainment fee, 2
cover chargs,atahle reservation:fee, or- reguired miimum purchase of fuoﬂ,-rej&néhmauts ormeréhendise,

"[FN1} See Historiadl and Stautory Notss below for effective date information.
A2 A g C s ' ) .
"Boardi-means. the:State Goming Contro) Board.
[F1¥1] - 8ea Hiatorical nnii’sm'mmnrNum‘beloﬁ'fcr effective date irformation.
R "5 ’

"Bus:ness“ mcans any astivity engaged in m‘ ceused fo be engaged-inby 8 business: mﬁty with-the obJect of gam, beneﬁr: or
advantagc,~eﬂhcr diract or Indxmnt, 10 any persou or-govermmental entity, .

[FN1} Bee Historicdl and Statutoyy Notes below. for.eﬁmhva tiate information, .

"Busmcss cnmy" mcludcs

-(a) A m:pnrahaa. psrtners}up. pmpnctorsmp, hmnud-ha.bihty nnmpmy “business assommon Joint venture, Timitad-linbility

- +parmeréhip, business trust and ‘their equivalents organized under the.faws of thie atntc or auother jufiediction and.any other
typa of entity that engages :n buamcss

(A nntm‘ai  prson engagmg ln a buamms it Ee js-deened tobe o business. ﬂnhty prumunnt EOMSA.LZQ
2 Thc term does not inclue a govemmantal eni:tty
.[FN1] Sec Historical and Btatutory Notes -béinwinr effective dats information,

1. "Cogyal iblaze"

@ 2006 Thomeon/West. No Clzim to Orip. U.8. Gowvt. Worle.
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“*Cagual assemhlagc“ mcludas, without: hmxtatmm
1. Parhclpants In canveuhms. busmms mestings pr mumamems govemed by ohapt:sr 463 of NRS, and rhe:r guests; or
2, Porsans colabmtmg a ﬁ-laud‘s -oT. fn.tm‘ly memhsr's wuddmg, blrthday,"ann:vcrsa:), gmduahnn, rehgmus ccremuny or
girndlar ngeasion” that.:s:gpnem_lly_mnogumd as customary for.celebrafion,

‘1"Faci]ﬂy"mcan£" ':_'_' S e o i i

) (a) Any AreR .Or- premlsss whm l:vs antartammem As prowdud .and fur 'whlch uans:dsmuon s collcctcd i-‘ortthe ngbt Br
privilege of entmng thai arep: nr Ihoao pmmises ifthcltvn :utmtmnmant :s providedrar .

i An establishment that'is nat as hchcd gammg eatabhshmenr or -

(DA ]lnemcdfgnmmg estabhsbmeut that is - [mcns:d for less- fhau 51 slot machmss, Aess tham [szx] 6 :games,-or a0y
combmabcn of siot machines-and games within thosa resp:chv: Timite.

{b) Any artea or premises whcm lwa nntcrtammmf. s, prcmded if the Jive: :ntartnmmant ‘i pmwdcki at any. other licensed
gammg csmb]:shmant . . . . S

2 "Faml:ty“ ancnmpasscs. ik ]nfc. entertmnmaut 1s prowdeﬂ ata hccused gammg sstabltshmrmt thatis lmcnsed for

{8 Less than 51 glot mathines, less: thau & grInsE, or ’my combmntmn of glot: machmes and games w:thin ‘those:regpestive
 Liniits, eny ana or’ premises' where the live -eptartatnment.is provitled nd for-which-consideration-is; «eollacted, from oneor
tmore patrons; fise the-right or privilege ofentering that area or thosa prenfises, even'ifindditional congideration‘s. cnlkcctcd for
<the nght or pnv:legc of nntcnng,a smailer venue wn‘hm that area:or ﬁwsc premlses, or -

Tt
+{b) At least 51:alat msc‘mnes or.atiedst:6 gamas.qany dw:gnatad ar:a ont the pmmsas of the: hcanaad ga::amg :stabhshmem
w:thm Which the live nntartammcnt ig prewded. S

[FNI1}See Hlstuncahand Stnmtory Notcs bclow for effet:tlve giats mformahcn
-1 :n, j
"Game" has“the mcamng asm'ibzd teitin HRSA,ELD_LSZ .o

[FN1) Sez. Hlstomal and Statutory Notes baiuw fur effective dats mformntmn.

“Licenset gaming establishment® has the mn?ni‘nglégqﬁbad_ to'it im RS 63,0169,

[FN1] See Historicdl and Statutory Notes below for effective date information.

© 2006 Thomson/West. No Claim to Onig. U.8. Govt. Works.
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{4 .
- Paged

.;I A1} T3l

4, "Lm mtortammmt" meang any. actwity pmwﬂe,d far pieasma, e:mcymant, recreation, relaxation, diversion or-other similar
purposc'bya person-or, persons who are physiuulry presant when pmwdmg that actmty 10 &'patron-or, gmup of. patrons wio
-are phym:nlly pr:smt. C . .

2 Thotemm LT
(a) Include.s, wﬂhnut hm:tatmn, -any oDe ot mora of the following activities: :
(1) Mumu or vuca]s provxduri by ons or mors profcsmnnal er amateur muswmns -of voaahsts'
s € Dancmg pm:formec!by Qe or more prdfessmnal o amataur dmczrs or performers,
{3) Acting or. drams prmhded by ong O MoTe professmnai or. amamr actars or playsrs,
i{4). Acrn'uancs ar: stxmts iprovided bji one or moTe pmfessmnai or amateur acmbam, pcrformm ar amnt pcrsans

: (5) Animal. Btunts . pnrfatmancss Induced by ons- -or. more ammal handlers ot tmnars, cxcept 28 othcnxnsa pmwdcd in
.’wbpmsmph (7) of, pmsmph (b .

i(6) Athlcﬁo or Jspnrhng contests events or. exhihthcns prowded by nne .0r ImoIe pmfesmonal or amate.ur:ath]ems “or
spoﬂsmcn, oL . . -

(‘?) Comedy or.magic pmv:dud by om-. bt mores pmfcsmonal nr.gmxiiwr.c'umc‘dians, -mngiciam, Hiuaionists, .v_an'tamincrb.or
pa:foxmcrs, : ' . RN

(B} A Fhow or produchon mvohnng any combmatmn of! tha nctw:tms dcscnb:d in subparagmpbs (L)yto (?}, inciusive; and,

i{9) ‘A -parformaence Suvolving ons ‘or ‘more -pf:the anbwhcs dasmbc.d o this paragraph by & du;c jockey who.presents
Tecorted music, For.the purposes. of fhils.subsection, &-diso jockey shall not be-deemed to"have engaged:in-g performance
lnvohrlug ona.or:mare:of, the activities Sasciibed. in this paragreph if'the. diss jockey genecelly limits ‘iis nteraction with

patrong o - ‘introducing -the aeeorded Jousic, \makmg announcements of .general intercst 10 patrnus, ared cxp\ammg.' .

. “encolraging.or dsructmg pa:tmzpamnr acnvmas br-tween pa.trous'
(b} Excludes. ‘without Iumtaucm, any one. or mora nf the foliowmg activitien: .

:{1) Instrumental .or voodl music, whwh ey -or may nat be. snpplementcd wxﬂ'ucommantngr “by “the .musicians, “in a
restanrant, lounge -or -gimilar.ares 1if :jugh musio dnns nat ‘routingly fise 10 “the :volume hat mtcrfcras wnh -gasual
.convetsation and if mmh music would not, gmmﬂy nmsa palmns 0 watch as- we.ll pi'lipten;

)} Oncas:anﬁl perfurmancss by emplayaes ~ihoss primary. Jub funcunn 'is that ofpreparing, sa!hng or scn'lng fund
:efreshments-or beverages:to patrons, if such pm-fnrmancus grs notedvertised 58 entsrminmant o the: pubhc'

*(3) Performances by pcrfonn:rs of nny type if:the pert'ommnce occurs o aalmansud ganung steblishment otherthan &
Hjeensed gaming estdblishment that'is liceused for’ less fhan 51 dlot machines, jess than:6 pames, or any.combination of slot
machines end games vithin those respective. limits, s long-as: the performers stroll continueusly. throyghout the fecility; |

-®.9006 Thornsor/West. No Claim to Orig. U.S. Govt. Works,
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(4} Performences. in m"eas.amcr.ihan in nightchibs,” lompes, yestaurants -or -Ehowrooms,’ if the performancas ‘occur in &
licensed gaming estbligoment other than.a licensed gaming estiblishment that s licensed for less than 51 slot mechines,

less.than'6 games, or:any.combination of slot mackines and.gamss within those respective lintits, which ethanee the theme *

.of the establishment- or attract ;patrons to-the areas of the. performances, s long-es.any. seating provided in' the «irgtml:;b‘atc
aren of the performets is limited ta:seating ot dlot-mackines or gaming tibloe; - : ' :
(5) Telavision, radio, closed cirit ot Intemet bropilcasts of Tive etortiinment,”

. £8) queriﬁinment '.prn;fideiifby,a;.patrdn'-:cr'pami‘ns, i%_iﬁlgcfiz_ng-, withaut :'iiziiitaﬁun,l singing‘hy ;phh'éns .qr}ﬁanciqg-:by‘-or
“between patrony; - - T R ' : .

b

) Aﬁhﬁﬂ!béhavi_nrs induced by mimal :rainéms or.caretakers pnmnrily “for zﬁs‘-pmpnscq'..afve&ucnﬁon and sciontific’

" (8) An necasional activity,including, withent 1ii;iit£ﬁ&n,‘=uamiﬁg, that:
. Doss notoonstinteaperbmaness - o - . -
+{ID i;:n;)t.advglrﬁéz;d;as.enieﬁainp_mnfm‘thplinﬁbﬁb;
-(nxj'Pﬁmgﬁiy-sawes 1o provide amb‘iencg; toihe .f}a::gilif}:}; and '
(TV) Is conducted by:an employes Whose pi-imag,f;jbb‘ funotion s uo!:ﬂ;.at of an entertainas, |
*[FN1} Sec Historicd! and St;xtutm_-z.r Notes below:for effective-date iniformation. _-
" A

"Shopping mall*includes any.ares or premises where ;muitiptewn'dors=assazr‘1£iie.'i~‘or the prjmnw_.purposalof eHling goods or
‘servicss, repardless of whether.consideration s collectsd for.the right or, privilege of entering that area prihose premises.

T o M .

~#Slot maching" hgs the meatingasciibet to it in NRS 463.0191.
5{PN1}‘Sez Histodloil:antl Statufory Notes bélow for&Hfective dute information.

3684110, ayer-define
#Taxpayer’. means:

'L“If live ententsinment that is rexable urider His hapter is provided at a Ticensed g-amir:tg cotiblishment, tha:petson Ticensed
“ta conduct gaming atithat-estdblishment. .

2, Bxcept as atherwise provided in mibscetion 3, If.tve eateriainment that is taxibls aunder this chgptg:r g not provided at a
licensed gaming establishment, the-owner or operator of the facility where the live satertainment is provided.

3. If live ootertminment that-is axable wodcr this Shapter.is provided ata piitticly swnel faeility or on publio-land, the-person

‘@ 2006 Thomson/West. No Claim to Orig. U.S. Govt, Works,
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who cdllects the taxalile reecipts. . .
" {[EN1]See Histoticaland Sttitory Notes below for sffective dais information,
% E1L oy t a ' '

"dec show"-means .an nvent of lmmtcd duration pnmnnly attcndcﬁ by membm of:a parhcxﬁar tmde*or.mdustry “forithe
-pnrpose of cadnb:tmgthctr mcrchanduse or EerViGes o d.lscussmg manms of intersst to, mcmbara «of that trats or- mdustry

»A nam:al person engagmg ina busmass shall hs ﬁacmed 111] be. 8 bumass untxty that ia sub)uat 10 mc prows:ons of: thm chaj}tar
/ifthe person is required to'file with the Intemnil'Revenue Service & Schadule :C-Form1040),-Profit-or Loss From Busingss .
Form, orits- coutvalent -or -suocessor -form,.or a8 ‘Schec!aﬂe ‘E (Form 1040}, -Supplementil Income and ‘Loss I-‘orm. orits

Lequjvaledt of zmccssnnr form, for the’businkss..

 3[FNI) Se Historicol and Statutary Notes'below, for offective date nformtion.

I8

_Adniinistedtion

-1, The Board shdll -zollect the tax. mlposed hy this.c.haptcr ﬁ‘cm tnxpayars ‘who' are hcensad gaming estgblishments, "The

-Commission. shall adoptsuch regulations s are necessary 1o ‘tarry oubthe provisions of this:subsection.”The regulations must
*he-adopted in-accordence svith the;provisions of ¢hapter "33]3 of NRS antd muet be codified in the Navada Admm.anahva

Cods
2 The: anartment shalk:
'(n) Coliect the tﬂx;rmpuscd by this chapt'cr from all other taxpayérs' end’

-{b). Mapt such ngﬁlatmns 25 are necessary i) cm:ry outthe pmvisiuus of. pmgraph (&)

[

3. For the purpnsca of'

(n}: Subsestion 1, the provisions of. chapter463 of NRS. ré!nhng to ﬁm pnymcnt, callccl:mn, admamr.mcm -and e.nfornament of
.gaming Ycense fass . pnd ke, inéluding, without Tiniimtion, cany provisions. relating Ao ithe dmposition -&f; 'penaltms and
interest, #hdll he Asemed to apply to.tho:payment, colleation, «administration :nd:enforcement ofithe' taxes lmpnsr.d by tlns

chapter to the'txwnt thet those-provistons. do :not condlict with-the provisions.of this chaptm.

() Subsection 2, the- prowsmns of chapter. 360 of NRSwelating fo the payment; colisction, administration-and euforeement of
taxes, inclading, without Tinistation, ‘any provisions relating to-the imposition -of panaliies and -interest, gball ‘bs deemed to
apply to the payment, coliection, alminisiration and enforsement of the tmes imposed by this chapter to the extant that those

provisione do nat-conflict with the provisions of this éhapter, e e v e e e imm e

..~ .©.2006 ThornsaryWest. No, Claim to Orig. U.8, Govt. Works,
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4. To- :ensure that the tax 1mpes=d h}r W is nollaotcd fmrly and equzw.bly, the Cum:msmnn, the Bonrd aid: thc
‘anamnmt ghall; .

{g). .Tmnt]y, .coordinate ﬁw admmmtrahun am'l collection :of" that tax and the ragulanou -of taxpa.ycm -who are liable for the
:payment of thc tax ' .o

e -,{b) Upunmqusaf, Bsmst the othcr agenmes m'b‘.ze aoIInchcn ofmatm. L

L

- "

{Fﬂl] See Hmtomal mdSmmtm?Notes bnlowfnr affcuhvn.dam mformahon. . L . B :_'-:-l . o

~{a} 'I"hc Boarc'i dctenmnes thzt a\taxpaym' who .is 8 Ixcf,nsed gannng esmhhahmant'm tnkmg.any scf:mn with’ mtcnt t0.défraud

sthe ‘State -o1.t0- evnde the puyracnt of the tax or-any part of the :mposed =by’this ahapt::, t.ha Board‘shallfestahhsh o
. amounfupan whmh ‘the:tax unpussd by‘tms nhaptm' must bs‘hase,& . L s

-{b) Thn Dapaﬂmnnt determines that g tzxpaytr who 15 nota hcamsad gammg as:ahhﬁhmcnt is takmg any acﬁon wnh intent to
:defrautiithe ‘State ‘trto. evadle the ‘payment. of the tax-or-any.part-6fithe :tax imposed by this: nhaptar dhe Dl:pa.rtmenl shall
csmblrsh BN nmuunt-upon whmh the tax imposed by.this: chaptcr .must e bassd . .

2 “The: ammmt embhshcd by ithé’ Buard or ﬂm Depa:lment pmsuant.m =suba=;ctmn 1 mnst be 'bascd upm: the- tax habahty m"
‘business entities that ara dnemad companible by tho Bonard or'the, Department to'that: of the- taxpayer, A

{F’N 1} Ses H:smnual and Statutory Notes below, foraefftchve dnte mformnlmn

" Eachpersau msponstbl:fsrmamtmmng tha rccnrds ufam:mayersbau S e e

‘(6) Keep suith records as may hc necessary‘tn dertc:.nnme the amount of the Imb:hty af the tzncpayar pursunnt “t0* the pmv:smns
oithis chaptc:r . . . 3 '

{b) Pmerve. timsc rccnrds for N

(1) At icast ‘5 yesrs if. fhe taxpayer is 8 hcﬁnsc& garnmg estahhshmant ar until. any ht:gatlon or, pmsecuhnn pursuant to'this
-Ghapter.js fndlly- derermmed, whkche:wsr is tanger; or

+{2)At. leasM “years ‘if the mxpayer'is not: a’licensed gaming csmhlmhm:nt or. until BYYy- ht:gnhon oF pmsz:cuhon pursunnt to
this chapter.is.finally determined, -whichover is lunger. and .

{£) " Make "the records availoble dor inspection by the ‘Board or the Depariment .upan‘démd'ﬁt -remgonible times during
reguler b husmass haurs

AR aek komaw

" 2, The Commingion and ﬁw Dcpnrtmsnt ury adnptngulatwns pmsuani 1o W spemfmng the typas of r:cerds '

© 2006 Thomson/West. No Claim to Orig. U.8, Govi. Worls,
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-

wh:ch must bz kcpt to dntcrmmc tho amount of :halmb:luy ofa taxpﬁ}'er far the tax- unposr.d by thig chaptur

3. Any agreement that is: enterad :litc.)modxﬁ::d or extended after, Ianumy 1, 2.004 far the 1=asc, n.smgnmcnt oo tmnsfcr ofany

/promises upon which any -activity subject: ‘o the:tax ‘imposed by Abis:chapter 1s,mr.1hmaﬁ=r gy “be,-conducted shall e

deemed to includs & provision that'the taxpayer reqmred t0 pay the tax: mustbie:aflowed.access:to, fpon deman, all bodks,

'mn:ds :and financial papers held by: tho "lossee, Lasdigmen: or! trangferee which nust the kept pursuant ;to.this section. ‘Any
pmon Loondicting - agiivities suhjact 'to -the «tak :imposed’ by ‘NRS. 3684200 swho “fails ito ‘maintain or tigtilose Hia aecords

" pursusnt to-this mibsedtion i Heble to- the: taxpayer for- an}r"panalty pald by the taxpay:r for:the’ }ate paymabt or: nanpnyment

oF the tax- ua\:sa:i byﬁm ﬁuiura to-mamtmu or chs:iase rcmrds : \ .

4, Apm‘sun who vm]ates anypmvmlon nfﬂns scctwn ;s'gmlty nfamlsdemeanur. -

[FN1): Sce. Hlstoncnl and’ Statntory th:s bclow fun:ffcctwe dutn nﬁm‘mahun.

»1 To vcnfy thc accw‘asxy of a.qy rcpurt ﬁled m’. 1f nofapmrt is ﬁled by ataxpayar, to- dctm:mmc ths nmount uf m requ:red to .
‘bopaid: o ) , Lo e '

vy .
A8 'I'he ch‘d, or-any pcrsan authorizad in wnnngbyﬂm Board may t:xarmau tha hnaks papcm anci rccords of any’ llccnscd
Lgaming. csmbhshment that may’ ba hahiefor.tba tax’ ‘imposed by this: uhaptar - "

E {b) Tha Depa.‘rbnent, 0. any pman authnnmd finy vmting by tha Deparhnennnmay mmmu Ahe bouks, pa.pz:rs ané reeords cf
-any:other,person Who may bc habla for.the teor mpased by this clmpb:r e

2, Any peraonwho may bmlinblc fur the: mx :mposed by this chapter-and who keeps: outs:dn'af thm smte ANy bonks, papers
:and records telating: thereto-éhdll; pay to:the'Board or-the Departmetit:en:amount. equél 1o-the.allowance: ;provided for state
fficers end .employees generdlly wh:la trayeling -outside of ithe State for"ench-day or fraction theresf during which .an
:emplpyes of the Board or.the. Department ig:engaged.in exaniining: hose documments, plus any-othcrastunl expensesiineurred
by thc employes” wh:lc he is.abgent. ~fromHis ragular piaca of employuent to'axuding: ﬂ'sosa ocuments.

{FNI] ﬁec Hmtonoal and Stamtmy Notcs below forﬁeﬁ‘:ctwe data mfunnafmn.

1. Exc:pt a4 nthermss pmv;dcdqn 'this. swhonmnd w'me secortls -and files of the Board: and he’ D:pa.ﬁ.ment
-coneerning the adminiatration.of. th:a Ghapter.are:confidential and-privileged. The Board, the ‘Dapartment .ang any-employce
.of tha Board oribe Depariment- engngwd i the administeation 6fthis Shapter or charged with'the custody- 63 -any such records
~ar-files shall not-disclose Eny information:chtained ‘froin 'the records urfiles-of.the ‘Baard of the ‘Department-or from.aay
-exarmination, investigation .or“hearing ‘muthorized iy -the- pmwssunx’uf this chap’a:r "The Board, *the ‘Depetitnent and any
employse. of the ‘Board or the' Deparanent may not by required to:protucs any of:the mcnrds files.and mfunnatlon Tor the

‘inspection of any persan o for-nse in any:action or proceeding.

_ 2, The resords'end files of the’ Bﬂard and the De:partmmt concmung Iha adnumstrahon of this cha-ptcr are.not confidential
andl privileged in the Tollowing cases: " o e il -
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i

() Testimony by a member or employess nfth: Board or the Dcpamnznt and production of records, files endinformation on

“béhalf of the Board or the Depariment or.a taxpayes in any &ction or proceciding pursuant to the provisions of this chapter, if
‘that tesitmony or the records, “files ‘or mformanon, or the facts shown ﬂzc.mb,}, Are darcctly .mvaivcd ‘in :the antmn -or

prncaadmg
) (b) Delivery to.a mxpaye.r or his! authonzcd mpr:scntatwc of B capy of.any rr.port arother dacument ﬁicd by the faxpayer.
: pursuantm tiiis Ghepter, . . ] o . . .
-(c) Pu'nlicmnn of statstms so chass:ﬁcd asto pmvcnt the :dcnhﬁcahnn of B pamr:ular pcrsnn or ﬁucumcnr.

Ady Exchanges nf miormatlon w:th r.‘ne lmcmal Rcvanua Scmce in; aacurdancr. wzth compams made.and pmwded for in such
“Cms. .. - ! . , _.1_ Lo .

: (s} chlosu:e ‘in ccnﬁdnnce to thc Govemur oﬂns agemt in tho exerc:sunf ﬂ'm Gnvmox‘s gnnemi supmnsory .powcrs, or to
‘any person :authorlzed to nudit.the aesounts .of the Board -or the ‘Dypartment in 'pm'suamn of -an.audit, or 1o the Attomuy

- ‘Genersl:orather egil mpmsemhva ofthe‘State in connection with:an: acuon-or.pmcscdmg pu:suant ‘to:this.chapter,” orito
'~any agancy ufﬁna ofany. otharsshm. chearged-with ihe admuﬁmmnnn nnmfercmnent oflaws. yeluting to: taxahnn.

[E‘N}] Scc Hnstoncai and Statutory Notns i:slow Tor &ffective'date’ mfnrmahon

Impnsiﬂen and Cullachon

"L Exccpt as- othc.rwsse pmwdedm this section,’ then: 1s‘hcrahy4mpnse& anexeise’tax on admission tn oy facﬂity in this State
~where hvc sntnrfammcut 13 pmvxdad If‘ the:live entertainment is: prewdcd at afamlmr with e maXimum pogupancy of:

' i{a) Lesg-than 7 500 the*raic of the: tnx ‘1510 pcrcent nf‘*thc.admmsmn cha.rga to" the“ acxlity plus 10 parnant uf Bgy amounts -

‘ paid for foaﬁ, tafmshmants and memhandmc pmchascd at the:féility. -

By At lnast .TSDQ, thu rate of thc r.ax i85 pemanbofthe admmsmn chm-g: to the fnclllty

"B Amuuntspmdfor‘ ’ ; .o . .

{a} Ammsston charges cullcntcd and;retdinad by . uunpraﬂt rehgmus. chaniablc, 'fratr.mai ot other org'arilzahnn that quahﬁcs

.85 8 tax-axempt organization pursuent to 26.1L.8.C. 550 1{c),"or by: anonprofit.corporation organized or.existing under the
provisions-of chapuer. 82.6f NRS, ars not taxdble pursusntte’ this section,

K(3), Gratuihes directly . or indireotly remittedsto SPEIsONs emplqyed at-a Facllity where live-entertninment-is provided orfor
gervioe chargss, indluding those imposed-in connecfion With the use-of -oredit:cards .or debit, carﬁs whighare. collcchcd and
retsiined by porsons other than the taxpeyer are notiaxable pursuant to'this sanhon.

"3, A business entity that collects-any amount. that 15’ taxable pursuant to- subsr.shun s habla Tor the tammnnsed hut is
entifled to collact reimbursoment from any person paymg that ammmt

LT I e Tt T T PP S PP} “ R

4. Apy ticket for live entenainment must state whether the mx lmpDSBd by this section is included in the pnce of the twkr:L If
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the t:cke.t dons not include sunh B smtcrmmt, the lxxpayc.r shall pay the o based o the face amount of the ucket.

.5.The tax mpuaed by subssch{m l docs :mt app]y Ata: .

J{8) Live. autertmnment fhat thts Statz [1:3 promblmd fmm taxmg nnﬂer the Canstitlmun. laws-or treatics nf‘the: Umtcd States or
The Nevada Conshnmon. e . . .

'!(b) st mtamimment that is; pmwdcd by ol mﬁmly for the ‘benefit of & nunpmﬁt mhgmus, chanmbie ﬁ'aternal or- other

" mrgafizhtion that qualifies e6-atax-sxampt arganization puraumt m W -OL.B! nonproﬁt co:paratmn orgamz.ed
or bxlstmg unider: thc ‘provisions of:h@tcr 82 uf NRS s . - - .

.(c) Auy bexmg conkest ar. cxh'hmon gov:mcd by :hc prnvmons uf chaptzr 467 anRS

,-(d) Lwe e.ntnrmmm:nt that isnat: prnwded e {mcnsed gam:ng c.stnbhsmnnnt n“ﬂ:s fnmhiy in- whlch tha live eni:rtammcnt is
pmwd:dihaa a mammnm nncupangy ofloss than200 pmans . .

[a) st‘antertmmnunt that<iz pmv:ﬁad at a hcanscd gaming c&tabhshmmt {hat.i8 Imensnﬁ for lzaa thanﬁl slot machmcs, Hess
sthan {s;x] 6 .games, ‘ot uny conibination of dlot mashines. aui. games within thogs’ raspccnva‘hmits, if.fhe! famhty inwhich the'
-ve. cntcrtammant e prowde.d ‘has a maxinmm: occupam:y of lesg thnn200 parsons

) Merthandise 618 cutside:the facxhty m thrch fhe! lm nmer:zmmant ls\pmwdad. un[oss the pm:hase .0f .the marchandmc
- =ntrﬁ=s1h='purchas=r to’ admtaslon to the:- r:ntunammcnt ) .

i g} Eive' mxcrtmnm:nt thatis provldcd at B tradc shaw

(1) Mausic performed by mudicians who movz conslnuﬂy thmugh ‘the audienoe if no mhsr fonn of lwa cntcrtammeat is
cafforded to the pal:rans . . .

. ) Live antertammnm that is pmwded ata hcmad ;gaming asmbhsmnentat  private mee-.tmgs or dmncrs atte.nde.d by mnmbnrs
: 1i0f B pa.rhcu]ar organigation or by acasual assamblaga lft.he purposs ofthe evant is not pnmanly fcr anhsrtamman

1

) aﬁ)‘L;vc ‘entertainmentthat is: prov:dadqn :thé. common‘araa gfa ahnppmg mall, uriless the: cntsnainmcnt is prov:ded m g
'5fac:l:ty Jogated within the médl), ™ . R . . .

(k) Foed end .pruduct demonsimations ‘pmw&ed -atea shopping mall, .5 craﬁ s}mw of «an -astillishment thnt sclls grucery
products, housewares, basdware:or other mppllcs 'for the htime,

«{D) I..m: entertainment that.is incidental to.an- amus&mmﬁ nde, e.moton mmu]niur or.e gimilar ii:glml c!cc:tromc, -mschamcal
-or elecwomechanical:attraction. For therpurposes of:this paragmph, Tive-entortsmment shall bn,dacmcd 1o be'incidental to.mn
wmusement tide, & motion isimmiator or & similar ‘digital, elogtronic, mechanical ‘or Slectrumechanics) atraction if the live
entertdinment.is: ' ' -

(1) Not the: pmdommant nlamunt of the: numcbnn, and
(2) Mot fhe primary purpose for which the puhhc rides, aﬂznds or cthcmlse partimpatas in'the attraction,

{m} Live eAtsrtathmént that s provided to*the public in en-outdoor ares, ‘without ay-requirements-for.the payment of an
admizsion charge or the purchaze of sny food, refrashments or maerchandise,
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[

(1) An mmicor concert, unless the cancert is pmwdad on th:prcnnses uf g lmcnaci:l g&mmg esm‘uhsmnmt.

(0} Begmmng July 3, 2007, race events schcduied at arace track-in ﬂns ‘State ang part of the Natmnnl Association for: Stock
Car Aum Récing Nexte] Cop Series, o m SUCCHSHOr TREINE: smas, and.all races assnmtcd thmwuh .

i{pY Lwa entartainment pmw:ted in 2 restavrant whlch is: mmdcnxalionny uthcnactmtres nunducted n thc rcsmumnt or w}nch .
sanly BEIVE 28, amblence -80'long-as t‘nem e charge to thc -patronsfor’ that emtnrtammant. T -

E 45 “The Commasamn may m:iopt regulahons r.stnbhshlng 8 woue&m‘e whercby A, taxpayer thnt js 2 e]:-:ansed garmng
;estibilishment-may request ax exsmptionifrom the tax:pursuant to,paragraph:(p) of subs:cnon‘s “The.regulations must require,

., *the taxpayer to:seék an etiministrative niling from the’ ‘Chaimozn: of the Board, prcmdc f, procr.d:.m: for- appca‘hng that nﬂmg to
.the Cmmmssmmanﬂ fmher m:sc:nba the-forms of ;no:dcntal or.ambisnt enturtammmt cxamptud pursuant unhat paragreph

0 »

7.8 usad i t}m 'semmn "max:mum unuupmey” m:sns,'w«thezfoﬂomng nrdnr oF pnunry-

(a) The taammum occupanay of tha'facihty in awmch’]wc nutsrtam.msn& ds; pmmdcd, a5’ detcmuuad hythe‘Smm ‘Flre‘Mmm]
.tha louaiagovmnmenml agency that'hag ihr. authonly 16, dstarmlne ﬂm mmmum oucupanny nf the “fac;hty, ) L

’

{b) If-sueh 2 Maximum: cccupamy has nof bcan dctemuned the maginmm onsupancy .of tbn famhty des:gnatcd m any pnrm‘l .

. “reqmred to he- ubtmned in.orderto pmv:dc ﬂw lwe mm'tmnmcnt. or

(c) Ifmwh B panmt dor.s not dcslgrmtn ﬁm mzuumum ncmspancy nf tha.famhty, the.actual scahng cnpamty of thc facshty in

‘which tha dive entartainmsnt s providad.

[FNI} Soeg H:smncal and szutmy Notes bélow "far ofﬁ:ctwc date iriformation,

1. 'Exccpt B3 oihcnv:se. pmwd:d i th:s section:-

(a} Ench taxpaycr who issd Imunaaﬂ gammg cﬁabhshment shalt. file with t.hc Board, onor: bafun: the. 24th day. of' aach month,
2 report showing ‘the :amount -of* all staxable :recripts forthe -preceding :month -or the :month Jn .whlch the" tnxnble isvents

N ot:currci The. n:port must bein nfatm' prcs:.n'b:d by itha Bnard

(). Al ither mxpayurs simil fite with the D:parlmcnt, ot or*before the' last day of eaéh month, 2 rcpmt showmg the amnnnt
-of all taxable. Teceipts for the preceding month, The rcport musthe in.a form prezcribadby ths Department.

-2 Tha ‘Board .or f.hc Departnent, f it deems'it necessary Ao-ensura: paymant o oy’ famhtata ‘ths. callestion’ by ‘the ‘State of the
.ta).:mposed by MRS 3684200, may require r:parw to be filed notlater than 10 days ifter the-end of:sach cahndar guarier.

-.3..Each roport.zequired to be filed by this section must be- acmmpanied by the-amount of the m. that i5-due. for. the pcnocl
-covered by the report

4. The Board-ang the Department ghall dcpgsnt nl? taxes, intemst and pma]ues it receives pursuant to- this ahapter in-the State
Traamu'y far ersdit to the Stais Geheral. Fund : IR Co e e o e e e mrm mea e e
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TFN1] See Higtorical-znd ;Stgmto;jriNotes' botow. for-effective.date information,

~Upan wnttf:n apphcatmn maﬂc bcfm'a tha data on whmh paymmt mnst‘ha mxda, the Bnard -0 theDepamnent may, for good

Gausc, :mndhy 30 days’ thc time vnﬂnn whmh & taxpgyer s requued 0 pny thatnx mxposcd by this nhapter Iftb: tax is paid

\mxpayarshall pay mterest at thc ratc of p:rcemt pcr morith: from tha dm ‘o Whmh the ammmt wouid hnve baen ﬂun v.uthaut
‘the: exte.namn untxl the dato nf pnymant, ﬂ.nless oth::rwisc pmv:dzd 111]:1]18_3_&0,252 of 3_6_&_32{! - S e 3

[P'NIJ S:é‘l—hsmncal and Stamtory Notca.bc]nw*fnr aﬂ‘ecﬁva dm: infomaﬁom

J lfataxpaycr' . ' - T “ )

(a) ls uidble. to cnllcnt nli -ar.part - ofan: admzss:on chargc of. chargaa fcrr fona, mfrcshmcntn and merchand:sr. whxch were
,mciuded By the: tnxabie, rccmpts rcported fora prekus rcpmhng pnnud. and : .

(b} Has takcn a daduchon on h:s fcdc:m} incoms taxrt.h:m purmant o w for thc nmnunt whlch he is unable )

mcall:ct, S . . L

heig- cnhtlca tu :rcc:wr..a credit forthe amcmnt ‘of mx pmd on nscmmt ofﬁmt mr:ollached ammmt “The: cm:dxt iy ‘be usnd .

~againgt the. amout of tax:that thc ta;gpaymaxsubscquuntly raqmnd toy; pg;v pmsunntsto‘ﬁns chapter,

2, Ifithe; Intarnil Reverus Ssrvme dxsalluws a deduction dcscnhcd in 'paragmph {b} of:gdbseciion:! and the taxpaycr cldimed -

auoredit.ona retum Foris pravious repotting \pnnuri pursuant. to: Eubsucbnn'l sthe taxpayer.shill inslude- the:emount .of that
.ergditin the amount.of taxes reported pumuantw thm nhaptcr in'thefiret: ratum Filed with theBoard" m:thc Dcpartmcnt afier

J4he dcducbnn feligallowed. - . . C,

| .ctalmsd a are.dzt on, a"rebuhi fur apmvions mpnrtmg pmnd pumu:mt to: subsnr:tlon 2,-he:shall mclndc
(a} The amuunt cnllecu:d”m the chnrgcs mpnﬂcd -pursuantts paragraph’ (3} af. subsnntmn Apand ¢
(b) “The tex; payahlc on tha amount collected.in the pmount.of tnxes rcpom:d,

“inthe' ﬁmt.r:tum filed w:th.thc Board or the Dcpartrneﬂt-aﬁerthat collanbom .

4, Exeept as: ntherwme p:nwded in‘subsection”s,’ upen determining that @ taxpayer. has filed a- rotum wiiich.containg one or
.more violations of the pmwswns of this-section, the'Board or ﬁle'Deparhncm ghall: . .

‘.(a) For the First- return oF ony texpayer tha conteins one or more Violations, issue:e latier 'Gf waraing to the- taxpayer which
.provides an explanation ‘of ithe violntion or violations contaired in the retun/Green ‘munbers -along dcfi margm “indicate

locatien on the prmtad bill{e.g., 5~15 indicates page §, line I3).

~more-violstons, assoss a ponalty equnl o the etnpunt.of the tax which was not mportad.
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-

: ‘{c) Fur the thmi nnd ench mbsaquent retum inany. calendar.year which ccntams one.or.more wo]auons, ‘a85E5.A pﬁnalty nf

'Overpaymenmnnd Refnnﬂs : R s :. . ' .

threo hmcs thc emount of the tax: whmh Was. not repnm:d.

‘5, Fur ﬁ:t: pm‘pos&mof suhse.chon 4,:5F tha'ﬁrst wolatmn of this aecrum by any mxpayer was' d::tazmmad 'ny the Bmud or the
"Department through an nudzt which covered more faen one retumn-of the:taxpayer, the Hoard orthe Department shall treat all
roturns -which -wers -detarmiined thmugh the same muﬂﬂ o “contain & welatmn or wclatmns dn ihe -manser prowdcd i4n

paragmph (e} of. subsaoﬁon 4,

-t
1

[FN]] Bes Hmtcmoal snd Statmary Notns b:lawforsﬁ‘cmvsﬂate mfonnahon '

(4

’If'the Dcpammmt dctcrmmcs Jhat any wx,\penalty of inbsrcsl it:is rcqmrcd toscoﬂcct has br::m paid-mors’ than‘nnca orhasl

b&cn'ermn:ousl_y or ilicgalty.ciliected.of computed,ths’ Dcpa;'tment aim'll met,ibrih. that faat

b State Board. of “Botmmiiners the amomnt cillected o -excess:offhe: ammmt Hegrlly: tns-and fhe -persen from whom it ‘was

* credited:on-any-Amounts;: ‘then due from thn pmon nnder tis chapb:r andthe’ balanc: rcfundad 10'the: ‘person. prifiiy succcssnrs ’

collected: orhy .Whom it'was. pmd. A apprw:d hy'the State Board:of. Exaniiners, the 'cxcess am:mnt coltr.ctadmr pmd must b:

Jdn: mtm:st ) 4 ; , \ .

[FN 1];Bee Hlstoncal and; StatutmyN ntns hclow for cﬁachvn dala mfon’nau on.

1. Exccpt 8- othenmsu prov:deim ];JRS_M and,mm . . .

}(a) No reﬁmd may b niiowed unlcss &, c]mm fnr lt xs ﬁlcd w1th

(})Tnc Board, if thc taxpnyar isal hc-sed gmmngestabhslmnut; or - "
(Z)T‘he Dcpartmﬁl:n, 1ft'|:n mxpayer Js notn hcensnd gam:ng :stabhshmcnt

o clalm-must bc ﬁlsd wﬂhm 3 yr.m‘. nft:nthn inat day nf thc muuthfcllovnagthc rcpomug pmnd fnr whlch the pvarpayment
Wag mada. -

~{h) NG cradit may be aﬂuwcd nfu:r the expzmtxon of the pcnad spactﬁe& for ﬁling cianns fnr refund. unlesx a claim for credit
s filed with the Borrd orthe Dapartmmt w;thm that period.

2,‘Fiach claim st bo i in wiiting and must state !hs.spc:z:iﬁc,gmgnds uyon'-wh'ich"the cleim-is foundad,

3. Fdihwreto file & dlaim within the ime presciibet in-this chapter constitutes & waiver of any demand against the State on

account of overpayment.

"4, Witiiiﬁiao.ﬁipé éfter rejecting any claim inwhdls or.in part, the'Bowd or the Department shall.scrve notics of its.action on
‘the clirnent in the manner prescribed-for service of notica of a deficiency datermination,
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. [FN1] Sec Hisiorical sad Statutory Notes bélow for effeative dats nformation.

1. Except ag othcrmse prowdsrl in-this, summn andw interest must be; ‘paid.upon any ovcrpaymant of any: nmaunt
*.of. thc tax imposed by thig. chapt:r in aucardannc thb e prov:emns ofmﬂaM . . .

2 Iﬂha uvcrpayment is pm& to thﬁ‘Depmnent. the mh:mst mnst e pald o

’ (a) ‘In the eaKe. ui‘ 8 reﬁmd, to ‘fha lazf;‘day of.tha cé]endar mouth follnwmg Ihc date updn whmh tbmpmou ma.k.mg 'dxe
- -overpayment, Jfhe’has not slready filet:-a: cla:m, is nntiﬁedaby #he: Department that: 4 Slaim may"be’ ﬁlcd pr:the date ypan’
whxch 1he clmm s curtiﬁcd to thc‘State. Board of E.:mmmm. whuchcverm aarimr.

‘{b) In the cese; ofa cr:d:t, ' thc game date, a8 that to whjch'intcrmt is. anmmx:eﬂ on-the tax ar ammmt agamsc wh:ch thn credit '
s app]:r:.d Coe ) ) .- o ) ‘

3.‘If ﬂ:a Board: nrthr: Depamncnt datannmes thai B0y ovurpaymant ok, been made zmanhonnliy or by mnson nf cmlcssness,
Jtha’ Bnard orthe Dcpartmeut nhait not aIlnw nny mtar:st on the' ov:rpaymant. . .

1 Na ln_]un::hon, wHEGF: mandate 0r nthcr Icgnl or. squ:m‘ﬁle process nmy issuein any smt,'ac.hun onprncasumg in any court
against:this stae-or ‘Againgt.any. ofﬁw of the Stah:-bo iprevent:orenjoin the-cdllection. nudcr this ¢hapter of the-tax! 1mposedaby

sthis cha.ptemor any amotnt nfmx. penahy or mterastrcqum:d 0.be nnﬁectcd. o )

Nomlt or; pmnundmg may ha mamtzmedm any courk for thc mcovery of nnymnmtallegad fo! imva hcsn ermmaus[y\or
lllcgaliy detcnmﬁzd ur,coﬁmmd unluss 5 ciann for refund or m'ccht has bss:n ﬁied. .

{,FN 1} Sm Hismncai and Staunmy Nams bslaw fur ci‘fsct:vc dnta m?formatmn.

1. w:thm ‘90 days after. afmal d:.cismn upon a cimm ﬁ]ed pmnmtto this: chapter ig-rendered by:
(a) The Commlssmn. ﬂmclaunantmay "bring an: actmn againstltha Boardonihe grounds get forfh in:the r:.la:m

(b) The Nevete Tax’ Cummmsmn, “the’ clmman: may hm:g an.aetmn agamst the'Department.-on-the grounds se.t forth m the

- Eleim,
! H

2. An action brought: pmuanttn'subswhdn 1 nmst "be brought in-a.coirt of. competant jursiction in’ Carsnn City, the county
oF this .State whers ‘Whe :claimant sresides.or maintains his piindipat place of business ora county-in wwhith any relevant
procesdings were conducted lyy the Board or the Pepartment, for.the recovery of the whole or.any, part of the emount with
n:spcct to-which the ::Iaum has hr.nn dwallowed

-3. Failurs to bring:an-action within the fime spaniﬁcd constlmu:s B walver uf any demenid. agaumt fhe State on account of
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.iilegaéi overpgymanm.. .
. [FN1] See'Historicsl and Swmtutary'Notes below. for.effective date-information,

.:. ..l ..[ I S y
'L I the:Board Tails fo rodil notice of action on & &iﬁim-v&[ﬂ:in'émonths atter the claim s filad, the claimarit may 'ccméit.ier- the
claim rdis&llov&féd and file an gppedl with the’Commission within 30-days afrer tho last day of tha 6-.month period. ’

2.1 the ;Dp‘parment- “fails to mail -notice -of Actionton & '&laim_wit'ﬁiﬁ 6 months after the" claim is Siled, At -laimant 1may
‘congider the ¢idim disallowed and filc.an appeal with 'thc'-NevaﬂalTaxeom:ﬁisa'inn:inthin 30.days: after the last day of the

:Gimu:}l}_: period. : . . ) :

3. the clnimant isaggricved by the décision O - ‘

i(a) The Commission randered.on .apped), the claimant may, witlin 90, days after the ~_ii:cis_in}_1 is rcnqcrad, bring’en ,actj'nn
«against tha Board on the-grounds:set forth in:the-clatmfor the roeovery of the whols.ar-any part of the amount.claimed as an
‘overpayment, - S T e
(b} The Nevada Tax Commis_s’inn'm:dercd o appeal,-the claimant may, within 50 cla;ys after the. Bedision s randered, bring
&5 gotion agalnst the Deparitvent on the.grovnds set-forth in'the.claim Jor the reeovery.of the whole.or.any, partof the Bmount
claiéd-ps an'overpayment, . : T ' : . :

4, If'jullgment is randered for ~the-;ilainﬁﬁ’,'ﬂwmmouni- of tha judgment must ﬁrst:bevcr;:.é_litcd-towarﬂs any’tax due fromthe
‘plaintiff, ' : ' : | co

5, The balance of the judgment st be refunded to'the plaintiff.

-[FN1] Seb Historicdl and Statutory Notes below Torreffective date:information.

In'uny jullgment, interest must be.allowed at-the rits of:6 porcent.porannum upon:ihe-amount.fouad to have been'iliegally
.collected from the dats of payment of the-ambunt.to-the date-of allewanes. of.credit on‘zccount of the judgment,-orw a date
spreceding the date of the -refund ‘warsnt by not more than 30 days. -The date 1t »be -detarmined | by “the Boord :or *the
‘Dapanment, e . o '

.[FN1] Ste Historledl and Sltatuiory;Nutas‘hélow':for.aﬁ'activn date information.

A judgment may not-be rendered o favor of the-plaintiff #n any sction broyght.against the Hoard.or the Depurtment to
recover-any srmount paid when the pction is brought by orin the nams ofian agsipmes of the person paying the-smount or by
any perann ather than the person who paid the amount. .

" [PN1] Ses Histarical 'and Stafuiory Notes bilow for effective date information. - -
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L'The Bogrd or the” ‘Department may :'-ezo'uar :refund or any-partdherenfwhich.is.erroneonsly made and:any -credit or part
-.thereof which is erronecusly dllowed in en ection brcmght in 8 court of competent Jtmsdmhon i’ Cerson City or Clark County
‘in the neme o‘f the Sts.ta of, Nwad& . ) .

2. The ac.hon oist be' tried in Carsun foy or Cla.r]c Cm.mty nnlcss {the:court, with the consent of the Attomey Gcneral, ardcrs'
B changc of place af tﬂal .

. 3, Thes Atmnmy Gcncral ghall pmsecuﬁ: ﬁm nct:on, nnd ‘the prnrv:smns of: NRS the Nevada =Ru1:.s nf le?mcadnra &nd the
‘Nevadz Rules;of Appeliate chadure ralanpg to sr;nrmn of mzmmnns, plaaamgs -proofs, wials aad app:als are. applwabla 1]
the: pmceedmgs ] . T, .

{FNI} Sen Hlstoncal &nd Stamtm'y Not:s“oalow fur aﬁechvu datc mformauon.

I T

“ A,

L b s

A I.f any amount.in uxnusa«of 325 has bnun Jlle:gally dctcr:mued,:euharby the pcrson ﬁl:ng the retirn of by thc ‘Board -orhe
'chpm'tmant, itha Board orthe Departmentshall:cerfify-this fant10-the. State Board nfﬁmm:nem. and the’ {atter-hall, amhonzu
the cancellatmn -of the amount” uptm iths records of the Board on.the' anarlmmt. .

‘2 “If .an amount.not e.xcaedmg EEZS hxshcemlfcgﬂly detmnmed. anhsr by the parson filing a.rerirn oy the ‘Board or-the
Deparmment, the Board or the Department, ‘without: cerfifying -thiz*fact:to the'State Bnnrd of E:,amlners, shali nuthomn Jhe
-sencellation of the amount upon t}m rucorde of: the. ‘Board orfheDepartment.

TFN1] Sr.a Mistoricdl.and Stamtory Notcs-helow.foy eﬁfectrva date-irformation.

s

‘Miseéllaneous Provisions
. *l

. . . ‘ -
] . P
. . ’ ) .
" - " R - 1
K '
] -+ .

L Aperscm ghalt not:

{(a)Make, cause.tn:be.made or permit 1o ‘¢, made-any faisa or frautlulent metum or- deolaration or falae statement in auy report
or declaraucm, “with intent to.defrand the’ Stats orito evaile; paymcnt cf the tax-ar any. part of the-tax unpusad by this chaptar,

{b) ‘Malke, cause tobe madr: or permit to'be maa.a a.ny false-entry in bnn]m, records pr accounts with. mtcnt to defraud the. Staie
or fo- wade the payroent of'the tax or:any part.of the tax impozgd by.this chapter.

{€) Keep, cause to'he kept or parmit to°be kept-more 'thau ‘ove et of hodlcs, recnrds-or accounts wilh-intent to defraud the
‘Btate or to evada'the payment of the tax.or.any.part of tha tax imposed by-this chapter,

2 ﬁt_ly_pcrsun who Violates the provisions of subgsction 1 g guilty of e gross misdemeanor, '

{FN]} Bee Hmtonml and Statutary Notas below for effauhvn date information,
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‘Any licansed gaming estiblishroent lisble for the paymént of the tax imposed by NRS 368A,200 who willfilly fuils to report,
pay-or tuthfully recount Tor the tax is EubJ ect to the mvncahon ofhiz gaming Itcansa by the' Gommmsion

[‘FNI} Bee H:stancal and Statutory Notes below for cﬂ’echve dats mfunnauon

" The remedlies of the State pmwdr,d Jforin- thm c‘bapt:r @I cumulahvc an& 1o ar.hon taken by the Commlsamn, the Board, lhe
“Departrnent or fhe ‘Attorney General. constitutes an elesiion by the Smtc o pursue .y ratuedy to:the sxciusmn of.any other

semedy for whmhprovmlon 15 madmn ‘this-Ghapter. .
{RNIT Sea-H:smncal anil s:ammry Nntss ‘betow for sﬁecuve date information.

+sCurrent Through tha 2005 73:d.Regu1ar Sasalon and tha 22nd Special Sasmon of the N:Nada chtslamre
ENDIOF. DOCUMBNT . )
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